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CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

Board Of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel 

 

1 Mr. Prakash Chandra Pareek : (Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer) 

2 Mr. Raj Kumar : (Non-Executive Independent Director) 

3 Mr. Prashant Khandelwal : (Non-Executive Director) 

4 Mr. Sushant Jain : (Non-Executive Director) 

5 Ms. Anisha Malik : (Non-Executive Independent Director) 

6 Mr. Sarthak Agarwal                                     : (Non-Executive Director) 

7 Mr. Rishabh Talwar : (Non-Executive Independent Director) 

8 Ms. Sujata Kumari : (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer) 

  

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Rishabh Talwar                               : Chairman 

Mr. Prakash Chandra Pareek : Member 

Mr. Sarthak Agarwal                                                : Member 

  

  

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

Ms. Anisha Malik : Chairman 

Mr. Sarthak Agarwal : Member 

Mr. Rishabh Talwar : Member 

  

  

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

 

Mr. Sarthak Agarwal  : Chairman 

Mr. Rishabh Talwar : Member 

Mr. Prakash Chandra Pareek : Member 

  

 

Statutory Auditors 

 

M/s Alok Basudeo & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN- 007299C 

Flat No. A-2, 10/501-A, 

Khalasi Lines, Kanpur Nagar,  

Uttar Pradesh-208002 
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Secretarial Auditors 

 

Hemant Kumar Sajnani & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

118/566, Kaushalpuri, Gumti No. 5, 

Darshan Purwa, Kanpur, 

Uttar Pradesh, India, 208012 

 

 

Bankers 

 

Axis Bank Limited 

 

Website 

 

https://snsind.in/ 

 

 

Registrar & Transfer Agents 

 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited. 

D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 

Phase -I, New Delhi - 110 020, 

Ph. No. 011-40450193-97 & 011-26812682-83 

E-mail id- admin@skylinerta.com  

 

 

Registered Office 

 

Unit 204 Plaza P-3 Central Square 20  

Manohar Lal Khurana Marg Bara Hindu Rao,  

Delhi Sadar Bazar, North Delhi, India- 110006 

  

 

Corporate Identity Number- L38210DL1985PLC020853 

 

Listed On 

 

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited 

2nd Floor, Piramal, Agastya Corporate Park,  

Building A, Unit 205A, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,  

Kurla West, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400070  

(Scrip Code: SNSPL) 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 

ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS: 

 

The Indian Growth Story  

 

India’s economy demonstrated marked resilience in FY 2024–25, ending the year on a strong note. Q4 

real GDP surged to 7.4%, spurred by infrastructure-led construction, sustained government services, and 

revived rural consumption. However, the full-year pace eased to a still-commendable 6.5%, reflecting 

moderation from the prior year. Sectoral strength was notable in construction (10.8% in Q4, 9.4% 

annually), while Public Administration, Défense, and Other Services grew 8.7% in Q4 and 8.9% for the 

full year. Agricultural and allied sectors also saw a meaningful uptick, especially in Q4. These dynamics 

highlight both sustained demand and renewed investment activity across major segments. 

 

India is expected to remain the fastest-growing major economy, with real GDP growth projected at 

around 6-6.5% in the current fiscal year, supported by strong domestic fundamentals and policy 

resilience. The economy continues to advance despite significant headwinds from global financial sector 

turmoil and inflationary pressures to lingering effects of the Russia Ukraine conflict and the COVID-19 

pandemic. This performance underscores India’s economic fortitude and its unwavering determination to 

surmount the toughest challenges. 

 

Indian Economy 

 

The Indian economy holds the position of the fourth-largest in the world by nominal GDP and the third-

largest based on purchasing power parity (PPP). It operates as a mixed economy, characterized by a 

significant public sector and a steadily expanding private sector. Notably, India's economic growth has 

been noteworthy, maintaining an average of 6.5% GDP growth annually. 

 

In the recent financial year 2024-25 (FY 25), the Indian economy experienced a real GDP growth of 

6.5%, with nominal GDP expanding by 9.8%. The growth in GDP was broad-based, spanning various 

sectors. Concurrent with this, private consumption expenditure (PFCE) grew by 7.2%, reflecting strong 

domestic demand. Over the full year, total exports (merchandise plus services) increased by 

approximately 5.5%, rising from US $778.13 billion in FY 2023-24 to US $820.93 billion in FY 2024-25  

 

Overall, the Indian economy's recent growth trajectory has been marked by notable achievements and 

challenges, as reflected in its various economic indicators. 

 

B. OPPORTUNITY & THREATS 

 

Opportunities 

 

- There are huge opportunities in waste management services and these sectors are booming after 

covid-19 pandemic.  

- The digitization, unparalleled expertise and an excellent corporate strategy to be resulted in an 

unprecedented growth of the company in coming years.  

- The Company can diversify its business in near future and some of strategic changes are in place 

for the company. New structure of Business can be placed in future.  

 

The new experienced and dedicated team of professionals will surely able to give a new shape to the 

Company. 
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Threats 

- Change in Policy and Regulations. 

- New entrants in the market and intense competition by existing players. 

- Technology may become obsolete due to Innovation in Technology. 

- Volatility in the related sector 

 

C. SEGMENT WISE AND PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 

 

During the financial year 2024-25, Company earned revenue from advisory services. However, there is 

no any income from the core operations of waste management services. The Company remains 

committed to leveraging its expertise and resources to expand its business in its core operational areas. 

 

D. OUTLOOK 

 

In FY 2023–24, the Indian economy demonstrated strong resilience with real GDP growth of 8.2%, 

supported by easing inflation, robust rabi output, and moderating global commodity prices. This exceeded 

earlier projections of 6–6.5% by the RBI, World Bank, and IMF. Growth in Q4FY24 stood at 7.8%, 

reflecting sustained momentum. 

 

Looking ahead, for FY 2024–25, the RBI projects GDP growth at 7.2%, while the IMF and World Bank 

forecast 6.5% and ~7.0%, respectively. India is expected to remain one of the fastest-growing major 

economies, driven by government capex, strong corporate balance sheets, and resilient domestic demand. 

 

The Company has recognized its role as a corporate citizen and continuously endeavours to adopt the best 

practices and we look forward to the future with renewed optimism as your Company will continuously 

focus on its resources, strengths and strategies to achieve its vision. 

 

E. RISKS AND CONCERNS  

 

Risk Management forms an integral part of the Company's operations. The Company continues to focus 

on a system-based approach to business risk management. It broadly involves identification of potential 

risks; their analysis and impact as also risk mitigation initiatives to address the same. The Board of 

Directors of the Company oversees the risk management process. 

 

F. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

The Company has adequate systems of internal Controls commensurate with its size and operations to 

ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business. 

 

G. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL 

PERFORMANCE 

 

The Financial performance of the Company for the year 2024-25 is described in the Directors' Report 

under the head financial summary that is the part of Annual Report. 

 

H. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED 

 

The Company has undertaken employee's development initiatives, which have very positive impact on 

the morale and team spirit of the employees. The company has continued to give special attention to 

human resources and overall development. 

 

  



SNS Properties and Leasing Limited                                                                  39th Annual Report 2024-25 

7 

 
 

I. DETAILS OF KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

 

Particulars FY 2024–25 FY 2023–24 Reason for variance 

Debtors’ Turnover (x) 0.93 N.A. 

Not comparable as there 

were no receivables in last 

year 

Inventory Turnover (x) NA NA NA 

Interest Coverage Ratio (x) 4.00 292.18 

Declined due to higher 

finance cost and lower 

operating profit 

Current Ratio (x) 2.17 4.77 
Declined due to increase in 

borrowings 

Debt-Equity Ratio (x) 0.57 0.11 
Declined due to increase in 

borrowings 

Operating Profit Margin (%) (EBIT) 14.92 60.75 
Declined due to lower 

operating profit  

Net Profit Margin (%) 7.58 44.80 

Declined due to lower profit 

and increase in admin and 

operating cost 

Return on Net Worth/ Equity (%) 9.34 36.01 

Declined due to lower 

profits and higher finance 

cost 

 

J. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Describing the Company's objectives, 

estimates and expectations may constitute Forward Looking Statements within the meaning of applicable 

laws or regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those either expressed or implied. 

 

K. DETAILS OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENTS 

 

Accounting treatment are mentioned in Financial Statement and Auditors report for the year ended 

31.03.2025 that is the part of Annual Report. 

 

 



SNS Properties and Leasing Limited                                                                  39th Annual Report 2024-25 

 
7 
 

BOARD’S REPORT 
 

To, 

The Members of, 

SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED 

 

Your directors are pleased to present the Thirty-ninth Annual Report of the Company together 

with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 

The summarized financial results of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 as 

compared to the preceding year are as under: 

(Rs. in Lakh) 

Particulars   Year ended  

March 31, 2025 

Year ended 

March 31, 2024 

Total Income 26.68 13.10 

Profit before finance cost and depreciation 4.03 7.90 

Less: Finance Costs 0.97 0.03 

Less: Depreciation 0.15 - 

Profit before tax 2.91 7.87 

Tax expense 0.94 2.05 

Profit after Tax 1.97 5.82 

Add: Other comprehensive income  - - 

Total comprehensive income 1.97 5.82 

 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, forming part of this Annual Report, 

have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, and as amended from time to time. 

 

During the year under review, the total income of the Company stood at ₹26.68 lakh as compared 

to ₹13.10 lakh in the previous financial year. The Company has earned a Net Profit of ₹1.97 lakh 

in FY 2024-25 as against ₹5.82 lakh in FY 2023-24. 

 

The performance of the Company during the FY 2024-25 continues to be encouraging and 

barring unforeseen circumstances, your Directors expect your Company to achieve better results 

in future.  

   

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

 

No amount is transferred to general reserve during the year. 

 

DIVIDEND 

 

With a view to conserve Company’s resources for future business operations, the Company do 

not recommend any dividend to the Equity Shareholders for the year under review. 

 



SNS Properties and Leasing Limited                                                                  39th Annual Report 2024-25 

 
8 
 

OPEN OFFER: 

 

Subsequent to the closure of the financial year, Shri Anil Kumar, Promoter of the Company has 

executed a Share Purchase Agreement dated April 23, 2025, with Ms. Shweta Kalra (Acquirer 1) 

and Ms. Rachna Kalra (Acquirer 2) (collectively referred to as “the Acquirers”) pursuant to 

which the Acquirers have agreed to acquire 73,250 (Seventy-three Thousand Two Hundred Fifty) 

equity shares of the Company. In addition to this, approval of Board on April 23, 2025, to issue 

5,00,000 (Five Lakh) equity shares on a preferential basis to the Acquirers, triggered the open 

offer requirement under the provisions of Regulation 3(1) and Regulation 4 of the SEBI 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. Accordingly, the Acquirers 

have made a Public Announcement on April 23, 2025 for acquisition of up to 26% of the equity 

share capital of the Company.  

 

Post completion of the Open Offer, the existing Promoter(s) shall cease to be the promoters of 

the Company and the Acquirers will have control over the Company and shall become the new 

Promoters of the Company. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

During the year under review, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company was increased from 

₹5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores only) to ₹20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crores only), 

divided into 2,00,00,000 (Two Crores) Equity Shares of ₹10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, by 

creation of an additional 1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares of ₹10/- each. 

 

During the current year, your Company had made an allotment of 5,00,000 (Five Lakh) Equity 

Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each of the Company, for cash at an issue price of ₹10/- (Rupees 

Ten Only) per Equity Share to Ms. Rachna Kalra and Ms. Shweta Kalra by way of preferential 

issue on private placement basis in accordance with provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI (ssue of 

Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 

 

With the aforesaid allotment of Equity Shares, the total Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the 

Company stood increased from Rs. 99.42 Lakh to Rs.149.42 Lakh. 

 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 

The Company has no subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies during the year 2024-25, 

as such, the requirement of furnishing information relating to performance and financial position 

of the subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies is not applicable. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under 

Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) is 

provided in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

During the year under review, Shri Prashant Khandelwal (DIN: 00482137) and Shri Sushant Jain 

(DIN: 07325084) who were appointed as Non-Executive Additional Director of the Company on 

July 20, 2024, were appointed by the Members as Non-Executive Director of the Company at the 

38th Annual General Meeting held on August 13, 2024. 
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Shri Adish Swaroop resigned from the post of Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 

Company w.e.f. October 30, 2024 and the Board, on recommendation of Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee, appointed Ms. Sujata Kumari as Company Secretary & Compliance 

Officer of the Company on November 14, 2024. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of 

Association of the Company, Shri Sarthak Agarwal (DIN: 09785554), Non-Executive Director of 

the Company, retires from the Board by rotation, at the ensuing AGM of the Company and being 

eligible has offered himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends the proposal of his re-

appointment for consideration of the Members at the ensuing AGM of the Company. Brief 

profile of Shri Sarthak Agarwal is provided in the Notice of ensuing AGM. 

 

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The Company had received the declarations u/s 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 from all 

Independent Directors that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 

149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and 

they have also confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or 

may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties 

with an objective independent judgement and without any external influence.  

 

In terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, Independent Directors of the 

Company have confirmed that they have registered themselves with the databank maintained by 

the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.  

 

In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors on the Board of the Company have 

requisite expertise, experience and possess attributes of integrity. 

 

COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEES 

 

As on March 31, 2025, the Company has 3 (three) Board level committees. The composition of 

such committees are as follows: - 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: - 

S. No. Name of Members Category of Directors Position/ 

Designation 

1 Shri Rishabh Talwar Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Chairman 

2 Shri Prakash Chandra Pareek Managing Director and 

CFO 

Member 

3 Ms. Anisha Malik Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Member 

 

During the year, all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the 

Board. 
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: - 

S. No. Name of Members Category of Directors Position/ 

Designation 

1 Ms. Anisha Malik Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Chairman 

2 Shri Sarthak Agarwal Non-Executive Director Member 

3 Shri Rishabh Talwar Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Member 

 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: - 

S. No. Name of Members Category of Directors Position/ Designation 

1 Shri Sarthak Agarwal Non-Executive Director Chairman 

2 

Shri Rishabh Talwar 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Member 

3 

Shri Prakash Chandra Pareek 

Managing Director and 

CFO 

Member 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of 

their knowledge and ability, in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2025, confirm that: 

 

a) in preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 

profit of the Company for that year; 

 

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate Accounting 

Records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

d) they have prepared Annual Accounts on a ‘Going Concern’ basis; 

 

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; 

 

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size of the 

Company and the nature of its business, with reference to financial statements. Internal Auditors 

of the Company periodically audit the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls laid 

down by the management. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors also regularly reviews 
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the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems and suggests improvements to 

strengthen the same. 

 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors of the Company had met 6 (six) times 

on April 15, 2024, June 06, 2024, July 20, 2024, August 14, 2024, November 14, 2024 and 

February 14, 2025.  

 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of 

the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings 

(SS-2), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

The copy of Annual Return as required under Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, is placed on the Company’s website and can be accessed at 

https://snsind.in/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/Annual-Return-2023-24.pdf  

 

LISTING  

 

The Company's Equity Shares are listed on Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited 

(MSE) and the listing fee for the Financial Year 2024- 25, has been paid.  

 

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

a. Statutory Auditors 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 

thereunder, M/s. Alok Basudeo & Co., Chartered Accountants, Kanpur (ICAI Firm Registration 

No. 007299C) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at 38th AGM of the 

Company held on August 13, 2024, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, to hold office till the 

conclusion of the 43th AGM of the Company. The Auditors have confirmed that they are not 

disqualified from continuing as Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

 

The Statutory Auditors’ Report for the financial year 2024-25 does not contain any qualification, 

reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

 

b. Secretarial Auditors 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, 

the Board has appointed M/s. Hemant Kumar Sajnani & Associates, Company Secretaries, as 

Secretarial Auditors, to undertake Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25. The 

Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 for the year ended March 31, 2025 is annexed herewith 

as Annexure I. 

 

We provide the following clarifications regarding discrepancies observed by The Secretarial 

Auditors in their report: 

https://snsind.in/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/Annual-Return-2023-24.pdf
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• The delay of 2 days in uploading Shareholding Pattern for the quarter ended June 30, 

2024 was occurred due to technical error in the exchange portal and the same was 

uploaded after restoration of portal functionality. 

• The SDD Compliance Certificate for the quarter ended June 2024 and 30 September 

2024 was not submitted due to oversight. 

Other points of Secretarial Auditors’ observations are self-explanatory and do not call for any 

explanation.  

 

c. Internal Auditors 

 

M/s. Sujata Kumari, Company Secretary has been appointed as Internal Auditor pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 138 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, to 

conduct the Internal Audit of the functions and activities of the Company for the Financial Year 

2024-25. Periodical Audit Reports are placed before the Audit Committee of the Company for its 

review. 

 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS 

 

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory 

Auditors to report to the Audit Committee and/ or the Board under Section 143(12) of 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

During the year under review, all transactions entered into with Related Parties were approved by 

the Audit Committee and wherever required, were also approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Company. Further, all related party transactions undertaken during the year were in ordinary 

course of business and at arms’ length basis. Particulars of material contracts or arrangements 

with related parties as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form AOC-2, are given in “Annexure 

II” forming part of this Report.  

 

In addition, the related party transactions entered into by the Company during the year under 

review, are also disclosed under Note no. 25 to the Financial Statements of the Company for the 

year ended March 31, 2025.    

 

The Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions is disclosed on the website of the 

Company at https://snsind.in/policies-code-of-conduct/  

 

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY 

 

During the year under review, the Company has not made any investments, given any guarantee 

or provided securities attracting provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further 

the disclosure on particulars of loan given along with the purpose for which such loan was 

proposed to be utilized are provided in Note No. 29.0 of the notes to the financial statements. 

 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has adopted Whistle Blower 

Policy for vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or 

grievances relating to the Company. The vigil mechanism provides for adequate safeguards 

https://snsind.in/policies-code-of-conduct/
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against victimization of employees and Directors who use such mechanism and makes provision 

for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. 

 

The Policy has been posted on the website of the Company and may be accessed at 

https://snsind.in/policies-code-of-conduct/   

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

Our current Nomination and Remuneration Policy is to have an appropriate mix of Executive 

and Non-Executive Directors including the independent directors to maintain the diversity and 

independence of the Board. 

 

The broad parameters covered under the Policy are –Attributes, Qualifications and Remuneration 

of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors, KMP and 

Senior Management Personnel. It also covers performance evaluation criteria of the Board, its 

committees and individual directors. 

 

The Nomination, Remuneration and Board Diversity Policy of the Company was reviewed and 

updated during the year under review and the same is available on the website of the Company at 

the link https://snsind.in/policies-code-of-conduct/ 

 

BOARD EVALUATION 

 

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on February 14, 2025, has carried out an annual 

evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual directors pursuant to the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors was 

done by the entire board, excluding the director being evaluated. The Evaluation Process was 

conducted through a structured questionnaire prepared after taking into consideration the various 

aspects laid down under the “Nomination, Remuneration and Board Diversity Policy” of the 

Company. The Board of Directors expressed satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors held on February 14, 2025, the Independent 

Directors of the Company had evaluated the performance of non-independent directors and 

Board as whole. Independent Directors have also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of 

flow of information between the Company’s Management and the Board and recorded their 

satisfaction with the flow of information. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The risk management is an ongoing process and the Board members periodically review the 

business risks and minimization procedures. There are no risks which in the opinion of the Board 

are of the nature that can threaten the existence of the Company. However, the risks inter-se 

those are generally dealt in regular course of business. 

 

DEPOSITS 

 

During the year under review, the Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposit from 

public in terms of the provisions of Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 

the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. During the year under review, the 

https://snsind.in/policies-code-of-conduct/
https://snsind.in/policies-code-of-conduct/
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Company has not accepted any amount as unsecured loan from directors and no amount of 

unsecured loan from Directors was outstanding as on March 31, 2025. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE 

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF 

THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE 

AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

 

Except as disclosed in this report, there have been no other material changes and commitments 

affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year under 

review and the date of this Report. 

 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY 

 

During the year under review, the Company altered its main object clause to align with new 

opportunities in the waste management and environmental solutions sector. The amended objects 

include consulting, advising, collection, segregation, transportation, trading, processing, 

composting, recycling, treatment disposal and management of all types of waste. 

 

CHANGE IN THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 

 

During the year under review, the registered office of the Company was shifted to a new location 

within the same city. Presently, the Registered office of the Company is situated at Unit 204 

Plaza P-3 Central Square 20 Manohar Lal Khurana Marg Bara Hindu Rao, Delhi Sadar Bazar, 

North Delhi, India- 110006. 

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS 

 

During the year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by the regulators, 

courts, or tribunals which could impact the going concern status of the Company or its future 

operations.  

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

During the year under review, the Company has no activity relating to conservation of Energy or 

Technology Absorption. 

 

Further, there were no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year under review. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

As none of the employees of the Company was in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits 

prescribed under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and (3) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, therefore, 

the information under such rules being inapplicable is not required to be provided. 

 

Disclosures relating to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the 

Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report.  
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Having regard to the provisions of the second proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and as 

advised, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to the members of 

the Company. Any member interested in obtaining such information may address their email to 

sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com  

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

As the Company does not meet the prescribed threshold of paid-up capital and net-worth, 

therefore, by virtue of Regulation 15 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the compliance with the 

corporate governance requirements as specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of 

sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI listing 

Regulations, are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the corporate governance report 

does not form part of this Report.     

 

POLICY ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

 

As the Company does not have prescribed number of workers at its work place, it was not 

required to constitute Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, during the year under review. No 

complaints were reported to the Board for sexual harassment of women at work place during the 

financial year 2024-25 as below: 

 

Particulars Numbers 

Number of complaints of sexual harassment received 

during FY 2024–25 

Nil 

Number of complaints disposed of during FY 2024–25 Nil 

Number of cases for more than ninety days Nil 

 

 

COMPLIANCE OF THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961 

 

As the Company has not employed prescribed number of persons at its work place, the 

provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, were not applicable for the Company during the 

year under review. Further, we affirm to extend all statutory benefits to our female employees as 

applicable. 

 

COST RECORDS  

 

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under the provisions of 

Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company. 

 

GENERAL 

 

➢ The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, 

voting or otherwise. 

 

➢ The Company has not issued any shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of 

the Company under any scheme. 

 

mailto:sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com
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➢ There was no revision in the financial statements. 

 

➢ There is no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 

➢ There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 
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Your Directors take this opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to the support received from 

the Central and State Governments and bankers. The continuous commitment and contribution of 

our dedicated employees and loyal shareholders in our success. Continuous improvement has 
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For and on behalf of the Board  

 

 

 

      Sd/- Sd/- 

                                                            (Prakash Chandra Pareek)          (Prashant Khandelwal) 

Date: August 19, 2025                       Managing Director & CFO                     Director  

Place: New Delhi                                         DIN: 01507921                  DIN: 00482137  
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   ANNEXURE- I 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

Form No. MR-3 

For The Financial Year Ended on March 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members  

SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED  

(CIN: L38210DL1985PLC020853) 

Regd. Office: Unit 204 Plaza P-3 Central Square 20  

Manohar Lal Khurana Marg Bara Hindu Rao,  

Delhi Sadar Bazar, Delhi, India, 110006 

  

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED 

(hereinafter referred to as the “company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 

provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 

expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

OPINION 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to 

the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 and made available 

to me, according to the provisions of: 

 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder, as applicable; 

 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder; 

 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowing. (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
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v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act): - 

 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018. (Not Applicable to the Company during the 

Audit Period); 

   

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 

Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021. (Not Applicable to the Company during the 

Audit Period); 

 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 

with client. (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

i. The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

ii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

I report that, during the period under audit and review, the Company has complied with the 

provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except 

the following stated in Annexure ‘A’: 

 

I further report that, there were no events / actions in pursuance of: 

 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021; and  

 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018, requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the financial year.  

 

I further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by 

the Company, in my opinion, adequate systems and processes exist in the Company to 

monitor and ensure compliance with provisions of applicable laws. 

 

 I further report that; 

 

1. The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect 

tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts have not been 
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reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory 

financial audit and other designated professionals. 

 

2. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The 

changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 

period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

3. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

detailed notes on agenda were sent with in prescribed limit, and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the 

decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

I further report that during the Audit Period there were no specific events / actions having 

a major bearing on Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above-referred laws, rules, 

regulations, guidelines, standards etc. 

 

For Hemant Kumar Sajnani & Associates  

Company Secretaries  

 

 

 

Sd/- 

CS Hemant Kumar Sajnani  

Proprietor  

M. No. F-7348 

CP. No. 14214 

PR code: 997/2020 

UDIN: F007348G001034693 

 

Date: 19/08/2025 

Place: Kanpur  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note- This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as and 

‘Annexure- ‘A’ and Annexure- ‘B’ forms an integral part of this report.  
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Annexure ‘A’ 

 

DISCREPANCIES FOUND DURING THE AUDIT 

 

1. During the period under review, there was a delay of 2 days in submitting the Shareholding 

Pattern for the quarter ended June 2024 to the Stock Exchange, as required under 

Regulation 31 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  

 

2. During the period under review, the listed entity informed the Exchange about the outcome 

of the Board Meeting held on 20 July 2024 under Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015, via email. The management clarifies that the exchange portal was down 

due to technical issues, and therefore the notice was submitted through email. 

 

3. During the period under review, the listed entity did not submit the SDD Compliance 

Certificate, duly certified by the Compliance Officer, to the Stock Exchange for the 

quarters ended 30 June, 2024 and 30 September 2024, as required under the SEBI 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

 

4. During the period under review, the listed entity had not installed the SDD compliance 

software until the period ended December 31, 2024, and was maintaining the required 

database in a password-protected Excel sheet up to that date. However, with effect from 

January 1, 2025, the Company implemented the requisite SDD software in compliance 

with the provisions of PIT Regulations.  

 

5. Freezing of PAN during the closure of trading window period was not done till the quarter 

ended December 2024. The management has represented that the same could not be done 

due to non-availability of login credentials of designated depository to the new 

management, however, the trading window was duly closed and the intimation in this 

regard was made to the Exchange. 

 

For Hemant Kumar Sajnani & Associates  

Company Secretaries  

 

 

 

Sd/- 

CS Hemant Kumar Sajnani  

Proprietor  

M. No. F-7348 

CP. No. 14214 

PR code: 997/2020 

UDIN: F007348G001034693 

 

Date: 19/08/2025 

Place: Kanpur  
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Annexure ‘B’ 

 

To, 

The Members  

SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED  

(CIN: L38210DL1985PLC020853) 

Regd. Office: Unit 204 Plaza P-3 Central Square 20  

Manohar Lal, Khurana Marg Bara Hindu Rao,  

Delhi Sadar Bazar, Delhi, India, 110006 

  

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 

based on my audit.  

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices I followed provide a 

reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 

3.  I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 

books of accounts of the Company. 

 

4.  Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.  

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was 

limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 

 

 

For Hemant Kumar Sajnani & Associates  

Company Secretaries  

 

 

 

Sd/- 

CS Hemant Kumar Sajnani  

Proprietor  

M. No. F-7348 

CP. No. 14214 

PR code: 997/2020 

UDIN: F007348G001034693 

 

Date: 19/08/2025 

Place: Kanpur  
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Annexure-II 

 
FORM NO. AOC 2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 

188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: 

 

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March, 2025, which are not at arm’s length basis. 

 

2. Details of material* contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

 

S. 

No. 

Name(s) of the related party 

and nature of relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Duration of the 

contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Salient terms of the contracts or 

arrangements or transactions 

including the value, if any 

Date(s) of approval 

by the Board, if any 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 

1.  Gin Spin Private Limited  

(Private Company in which 

relatives of a director are 

directors and members) 

Consultancy services 

by the Company in the 

ordinary course of 

business 

During FY 2024-25 The Company has given consultancy 

services for an amount of Rs. 26 Lakh  

Not Applicable 

 

*The materiality threshold is as prescribed under the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

 

For and on behalf of the Board  

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                      Sd/-                                                         Sd/- 

                                                                                                                                    (Prakash Chandra Pareek)                 (Prashant Khandelwal) 

Date: August 19, 2025                                                                                                Managing Director & CFO                    Director  

Place: New Delhi                                                                                                                  DIN: 01507921                           DIN: 00482137  
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

AARUSH RESIDENCY
FLATNO,A2lOl501-A
KHALAS1 LINES, KANPUR.2O8OO2

alokbasudeo.ca@gmaii.com
Mob ao, 941503335X, 93350051.22

TO

SNS Propeties,tDd Leasitrg Limited

ribrnalion. $e ire cquired to rcpor ttrat 1acr. We hale nothtng to reporl in this regard

INDEPENDtrNT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Itrt)orl on lhe \u(litoftIc Fininciil S(rl.nr.nls

We have audiled the acconipanlirg financial stabments oISNS PROPERTIES AND LEASINC LIMITED ( 'thc
Conrpail ). nhicr conrprise rhe brlrncc sheet as at March ll. 2025. and the sLaLenrent ol prolit and Loss

(ircl!d]iB olh€r conpehcirsivc income). the cash U]J\v slalenrent and the staLenrent of chxnges in equit\ lbr lhe
ycar thcr end€d. and noles to lhe llnafcial slatenrcnls. including a summarl oI material accounring poljoies and
other explana(r'r i.tbrma!ion.

In our opinior and to the besl ol our iniomation and according to the explanetions given to us, the aloresaid
financial staiements gile the inaormation requircd by the Coflpanies Act.201l f.the Aof') iD drc manner so
required and give a lrue aDd fair vietr in conformit] wlth the accounting principlcs gcnemlLy accepred in 1.dia
includine Indian Accounting Standards (ilnd AS') specified under Scction 133 oflhe Acl. ol dre staae ofal]ai6
(Unancial posilioi) ol rhe Company as al March 11,2025. and its prcllt (llnancial pcdbrmance including oLher
coDrPrehensive income), its cash ilo$s and changes jn equity lor thc )cd cnded on thir date.

WeconducledouraudilinaccordanceBiththeStandardsonAuditing(SAs)specjfiedufdcrScctionl4l(10)ot'
lhe AcL. Our rcsponsibilities unde. those Standards are tufiher desoibed in rhe 'Audirol.s Responsibiliries lbr
the Audit oflhe Financial Stalenrents" sccrion of our repoft- We arc independenr oflhe Company tn accordanc.
lvith thc Code ol Ethics' issLLed by thc Institure of Chartered Accountanls of tndia ( tCAI ) rogether u ith lhe
ethicaL requilenrenls d1ala,e rclevant to our audil otdie llnancial statcmcnts under rhe prcvjslofs ofthe Acr aid
Ihe Rrlet thercufdcr. and we have lulfllled our orher ethicaL rcspo.sibiLities ir accordince \rith rhesc
rcquircDents and the Code ol Elhjcs. We believe rhat the audi! evjdencc we hale oblained is sufficienl and
app.op.iare to pro! dc a basis ibr our opinlon.

Ke] audit matte$ are those maltcE thar. in our prolessional iudBmenr, Nere ol rnost si8niUcance in oll audjl ot
thc linancial sralenients ofthe curent peiod. Thcsc rnarters were addressed in the co.terL ol our audir otrhe
lln.ncial stalenrents as a $hole, aid in loming ouropinioi drereor, and $,c do nor providc a scparate opiiion or

We ha\ e delcrmired that there is no key audir ilalter ro communicate in our reporr.

lnlormalion Ofher than the Iinrtrcial Sfatemenh nnd Auditor,s Reporr Thcreon

The Clmpail s Board of DircctoN arc responsible lor the prcpararion of rhe orhcr intbrnatjon. 'lhe orhcr
inlbrmarion.or|riscs the i.lb na(ion included ii tie Annuat Repoft. bur does rot jf.trde rhe Iflnctal
sraremenrs ard o!r auditoas report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover lhe orher inlomation and $,e do not e\nress arv 1'. n .f
a$ur..ce cof clusion thercon.

ln con leclion \ ilh o!r ardll ol the flnancial slarerncnts. o!rr responsibility is ro read thc olher intbrmarion and. trr
doineso.consdershcrheL rhe orhcr iriorharion s nraterialLr t,rcofsjstcnr $tth lhe ljran.iat srareDcnrs or ori
k.o\!ledse obtaiicd du! ifg rhe coulse ol our audit or orher$,ise appears to be inarerielt), missutcd.

It. based or drc \!ork re hlve pedbmed, we conctlde thar there is a.rabrjal misslaremcnr otlhjs olhcr



Responsibilities ofMnnagement and Those Clrargcd Bith Governnnce for the Fin.ncialStxremcnls

The Cornpaf) s Board ofDireclo|s is responsible lor thc mauers st ted in Section 134(5) ol rhc Act $,irh respect
to the prcparation of these llnancial slatements ihat give a nue and lair vielv oI thc srate ol afiirirs (Unancial
position). plo1ll (financial performance including olher cornprehensive income), cash fo s and chaDgcs iD

equity ofthe Company in accordance with the acconnting principles generally acoepted in India, inchding the
Ind AS specified under SecLion 133 of the Act. This responsibilily also includes mainlenance of adequare
accounlnrg records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for satbguarding ofthe asseLs oILhe Company
and for preventin8 and detecting iauds afd otfier irrcgularitiesr selection and application of appropriare
accounting policiesi making ludgnierts and estinrates that are reasonable and prudeflr and design-
inplcnrcftation and mainlenance ol adequatc irlcmaL ihancial conn'ols. that \!ere operaling cflecrivcly for
ensuring the accuracy and compLeleness olthe accourling records. relelant to the prepamtior and presEnrarion

ofthe ljnancial stateme.ts iha! gire a truc and fair view and are tiee ttom mate al rnissraremcnr. whethir due to
fmud or eflor, which have been used lor the puTose ofpreparalion oflhe financial statemenrs by the Di.eclors
oftte Company, as aforcsaid.

In preparing the tinancial slatements- management is responsible 1br assessing the Conrpany s ability ro coilinue
as r going concem. disclosing. as applicable. matte6 relared to going coicem and using thc -aoing concem basls
olaccounting unless the mx.agement cither intends 1o liquidale the Conpafl or !o cease opeEtions. or has no
realislic alteftali\e bur to do so.

lhe Conrpan) s Board ol Direciors are aho responsible lbL oleEeeing the Cornpan) s inancial repo.ting

Auditor\ Responsibilities for the Audit oftlre Financial Statements

Obtain an urderstanding ofinLernal conh.ol relevanr to the audit in oder Lo design audjt procedures ihar are
apprcp ate in the circumslances. Under Section 143(l)(i) ofthe Acl. w€ are atso r€sponsibte 1br expressjns
ou. opinion on whelher the Conpany has adequare tntemat financiat controts system in ptace and rhe
opeLating ellectivcness of such conlroh.

Our obiectives are to oblain rcasonable assurance aboul whether the llnancialsialeinents as a whole are lt.ee t|oin
rnaterirl misstatement. whelher due to tiaud or eror- and to issue an auditoas .epo{ ihat inctudes orr opinion.
Rcasonable assu,aice js a high Ie\el ofassurance, but is nor a guarantee Lhat an audk conducred in accordance
with Standards on Auditing wiil aLlvays detect a maredal nrissmrernent when ir exists. Misshrcments can anse
Itom tiaud or error and are conside.ed material il, indjviduall) or in the aggregare- lhey could reasonably be
expected 1o inlluence the economic decisions ofusers taken on rhe basis ofthese financiat statements_

As part of an audit in accordance with SA:, we exefcise professionat iLrdgmenr and maintain protessjonal
skcptickm thrcughoul the ludit. We also:

Identil! a.d assess the risks ol ilarerial nrisstalemen! ot rlre linancial statemerts_ shelher due 10 liaud or
ermr. desigf Lrfd pertbm audjt pmcedurcs responsive ro rhose risks. and obrajn audjt elidence rhat is
su licicnl anll appropiate 1o pro\ide a basis lar our opirion. The risk olnot de1ec1i.g a rnareriat nrisslalerlenL
rcsulting tiom Uaud is higher than lor one resLrlring liorn eror. as i.aud nay jrvotve coltusion, tbrgery.
intentional omissions. misrepresentaiions, or rhe ole dc ofinrernat control.

Conclude of drc applopdateness of managenrenL s use olrhe going concern basjs ota.counrins and. based
ontheauditevidenceobtained.\rherheramarcrialuncelajnr)e\srs.exredroc\enrror cofdiri;rs rhal may
cast significa.l doubt on the Company,s abiliry ro continue as a going concern. ltwe conctude rtrat a maleriat
uncertainly exjsts. we are required 10 draw attenlion in our audiror,s repo* to the rclatcd disclosurcs ii the
ilnaLrcialslarcmenls or. itsuch disclosurcs arc inadequalc, to modiiy our opinion. Our concLusions are bared
on the audjt eyidence obtajned up ro the date oI oLrl audirois repon. Horvever. fulure evenrs or condtiois
. d) .i-r,l-e,-.n.p.n) r - _. a 8oirg c, ..e,.

. Evaluate the appropiateness ofaccountin-q policies used and the reasonabteness ot'accou.ring estimates an.l
rclated disclosurcs nrade by managemenr.



. Elaluale the overall presentation. strLrclure. and contcnr ofthe financial sraternenrs, includirg the disclosurcs.
and whethcr the Unancial slatements rcpresent the unde ying transactions and events in a manner rlur
-chiF e .,ir ire.e I dr.o ..

We communicate \vith those charged with governance regarding, among olher rnatteB. rhe planned scope and
timing ofthe audit a.d significant audit findings, including any significan! deficiencies in iitemal control thar
we ideniify dirring our audir.

we also provide fiose charged lvith gove.iance wilh a statcmenr that we have coniplied wirh Ielevant erhical
requlrernerls rcgardirC independence- and to cornmuricate \!irh thcm all relationships arrd olher marLcx thal
may rcasonably be Lhoughito bea. on our indepcndence, and lvhere applicsble. rcLated satcBuards.

llom lhe malteN communicated with those charged with governance, we deremine rhose marers thar were of
most significance in the audiL of the financial statements of the cu .ent period and arc rheretbrc the key audit
malters. We describe dlese matteB in our auditois r€poft Lrnless law or rcgu]ation prccLudes public disclosure
aboul the matier or when! in ex!rcmely rare circumstances. lve derermjne that a matrer should no1 be
comrnunicated in our report because rhe adlerse conseqtre.ces ol doing so would reasonab y be expected to
outweich the riubli. inrercsi beneiits ofsuch coiiirrurjcatlon.

Repo.l on Other L€galand R.gulatory Requirements

1. As.equi.ed by dre Companies (Auditoas Reporl) Order.2020 (..!he Ordef-)_ issued by $e Cenh.al
Govennnent ollndia in terms ofSection 143(l l) ofthe Acl. we give in the.,Annexur.e A -. a starement on rh€
matteB specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the exrenr applicable_

2. fufther10ourcom eDts in Annexurc A, as required by Seclion I43(J) ottheAcr,lvercpo thar:

(a) We have soughL and oblained all the hlbmarion and explanarjons which ro the besl olorr knowtedge
and beliefwefe necessary for the pdnoses ofouraudtr.

(b) ln our opjnion, propel books ol account as requii.ed b) lar! have been kepl b) the Comparjy so irr as rr
appcats iiom ou. examination ollhose books.

(c) Thc balaice slree! lhc statemen ol prolir ard loss (including orhcr comprehersi!c ircone). rhc clsh
llo\r slatcnenr a.d lhe sLatcDcnr ofcha|ges in c!uit! deilr $irh by rhis r.f.d are jr ag.ccmcrt Nirh Lre
booLis.l .c..urls.

(d) ln ou. opinion. rhe atb.esaid linancial sralenrents compty wirh lhe 1nd AS specjljed !nder Section i3.l

(e) On the basis olthe s,ritten reprcsentarions receiled from the direcrors as on March j1. 2025 taken on
record b)r the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on March I t. 2025 Irom being
appoinied as a dircctor in terms ofSecrion 164(2) oflhe Act.

(t) With respect 10 the adequacy olthe inrernal financial conlrots over financiat repo[ing of the Compary
and the opemting etlectiveness ol such conrrcls. rct$ ro our separate report jn -Annexure B... Our
iepo't cxpresses an unmodified opinioD on the adequacy and opeiaring efecrjleness otthe Compm)!s
i r-r'd ir cncidlco rro s orer r. d rci. repo. i p

(g) In our opinion, and to the best of our infomalion and accordiig ro the exptanations given Lo us. and
wi th respecr to rhe olher mafters rcquired ro be inchded in the Aud itor's Repoft under section I 97( I 5)
ofthe Companies Acr.2013. as amended_ no renunerarion was paid by the Conrpany ro its directoB

(h) With respect to the olhei naters 10 be inctuded in the Auditois Reporl ir accordance with Rute I I of
the Compa,ries (Audit and Audilos) Rules,20t4, as amended. iD our opifjon and ra rh€ best oiour
irlomxlion ard accordiig 10 thc explaiollons gjven to us



the Company does not have any pending litigarion which would impac! on irs lnancial posirion in irs

_lhe 
Co.r]r!f_! did rot h.\,e ) olrsrxldrfg lofglern coDlrlcts lncludllg dc, \ar \c corr..cLs as .r

MrrchIl.l!25 lo \fhlchthcrr{crcaot nlrcriaL ioreseeahLe:

There were no amounls which were required to be tanslered 1o the lnvestor Educarion a.d Protecljon
l'und by the Company.

(a) the management has reprcsented thal. to Lhe besi of its krowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
notes lo the accounts. no tunds have been advanocd or ioaned or invested (eilher i.om borrowed londs
or sharc premium or any olher sources or kind ollunds) b) the Company ro or in an) orher percoD(s) or
enLily(ies). includins lbreign eftities ("lntermediariel')- wilh the undcNtanding. wherher recorded n
sritin-s or otheNise. that lhe lntemediary shall. whelher. directly or indirectly tend or invesr in orher
peuons or enlilies identified in any franner uhatsoever by or on behall ol the Conpan) (..Utlimate
Bc.eilciaries-) o. providc any guaraniee. securitl or tlre like on behall ol thc Utlimare Beneficiaries -

(b) the nranagement has rcpresenred, that. to the besl ol jh knowledge and betjcU as dGctosed ir lhc
notcs to the accounts, no tunds have been received by the Conrpany tiom an\ pexon or entitr,
inciuding loreign entilies ("Funding Palties"), wirh the unde$randin8, rvherher rccorded in lvitjng o-
othe'a'ise. that the Company shali, whether. directly or indircctly, tend or inven in olher persons or
entities identified in any manDer whatsoever by or on behalf of rhe Funding parly (..Utrimare
BeneUciaries") or provide my guarantee, securiry or the like on behalfofrhe Utlimare Beneltciaries ,

(c) based on the audit procedures rhar has been considered .easonabte a.d appropriare jrr re
circunrsrances, nothing has come to our notice rhat has caused us ro betieve lhar rhe rcpresenlatious
und sub clause (a) and (b) abole conrair any malerial misstatementi

The Compan] has neilher declar€dnor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our exairination which included rcst checks, the Company has used accouniing so{iware 1or
rnainraining ils books ofaccounL which has a teaturc oI recording audit n.ait (edil tog) facitiry and lhe
sanre has opeftncd throughout rhe yetu lbralL rc cvant ta.sacljofs rccorded in thc soiNare. Fu hcr.
dulng the couNc ol our audil wc did nor come across any instance otaudir rait ltarurc beinglampercd
$ilh ir rcspecr ol the accounling soliwffe. Addirionatty. ttre audit rmit has bcen preseNed by the
Company as perthe statutory requirernenrs for record retenrion.

!or AloL lhsudeo !t Clo.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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\Dnc\urc {'lo thc l d.t)(nik t .{udiror's ttclorl

(lleLrred rr) in pxrrlrrt)h I unttrr rhe hciding ol RelortonOthcrLcgntxndRegut!torrllequirenrctrls.
of our rclort ot $.n ditc to the flenrb.r\ of SNS TROPERTIES .{\D LLASI\C LtMIlt,t) r-rh.
( {,npxny ) oir t!0 t'inrrcirl \tnrenre ls .\ of in.t tor tnr !ear.nr[{t \t,rch Jt, 2025)

Bascd on die audit procedurcs pedbr.red ibr the purpose of repo.rjng a lrle and lair liew on the thanciaL
slatemefts oI the Cohp3ny and takjnp inio consjderalion rhe tniomarion an.t erptanaliofs pj\en ro us and rhe
books ol account and other records examiie.l bl ur in rhe n!.ma L.u r oI aud r. and ro r|e best oi.olr
kno$icdee and be ief: we rcpor that:

{i) (r) A)'l'he Company has maintained proper records shorlirg ti parttculas i.cLudirg quantilaLive
delails !nd sitlalion of propert). planr and equipil€nl and righl ot !se assers on the basis of
a!ailaL'le inlomallon.

(b) Properl)_ pldnt and equipment hare been phlsica|y !erjfied by the rnanage.lent durirg rre yeaL at
reasonablc inteNals and no hateriatdjscrepancies were idertified on such lerificarjoLr

lc) According to thc inlbrnration and expranarions given ro us and on the basis of our exa,iration of the
rccords ol Lhe Comprny, no innnovable properties are owned b), the Conrpan\_ accordingly_ thc
frc\,lsjons ot clausc l( )(c)olthe Order are rol app icable lo Lhc Companl :

(d) Ihe Compan) has nolrevalued jLs propedy, ptant and €qujpment during the year.

(e) According to the inlormation and erptanarions gt!en to us, no proceedings have been initialed during
thc lear. or are pending againsl the Cornpany as ar March 3l_ 2025 tbr hotdins an\ benanr properl)
under rire Benani liansacrions(prohibiLiorIALr.t088(.ranrdrtcd)r,rdrue5i;tc;hereur!u.

(ii)((i) According ro lhe iribmalior and erplan.tions giyen to us. no i rlcnroryi.ctated opcmLrons u,crc
conducrcd dlrjnB the )ear and accordingl) thc pro!isions ot c ause I (it)(a) ol lhc Orde js nor
applicable to rhe Compan).

(b) According to the inlbrmaLion aid exptanations given lo us ard on rhe basjs otour cxamtiarion ot
rhc rero,!l olrhe CompJr). rhe Conpiny has not been sanctioned u,orkjng capiLat tirnjts. i.onlo(,o rr 'dr. d l..ri .:or..orrhebd.. o L._,.)oic.jrenr ...,...co",_t, rt.. Dro\:\,,.o" Lrp',ii.rL ., teL,r.e i roi .ptic"oe,orheronpJr.r

Duriig lie year, lhe Company had gmntcd unsec!rcd loan ro a Conpany. Ho$.c\e,. the Conjpaf) ha.l
Dt made an), invesrnrcnts. prcvjded arry guararrtee. or secu r) or gmnrcd adlanc.s r natlre ot lmns.

securcd or !fsccured to compafics. tj.ns. liDired tiabitky parrncrrhips or ai) orher panr.lurtig (hc

a) The aegregaE amoL,nl durhg thc ]ear and balarce outstandirg a! lhe balafcc sheer date *ilh
respecl ro such loans are as pcr the rabic giler bcto\r:

B) The Conpany is rot having tn13neible Assers. acco.dirrgtl paragrap| 3(i)(a)(B) ot rhe Orter js not

Brlrn.e oulslr.tlinB
rs rt ll.r.n ll.2tlta

E.00lalth \il

i o. r o ^roroi g r. iro 1.t'o iro e.o- rion...\-n I

o l'eJrall .i -.1 oJ pr\'J. are n n.d ..i-..o le-r...rt t.
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c) Ther€ is no fixed schedule ofrepaymeni ofprincipalof toan and ir is repayable on demand. rnterest
receipls arc regular.

d) There werc no overdue amounts remaining oursranding as ar the batance sheet date in respec! ofttre

(i!) In our opinion and acco.ding to the inibrDalion and exptanaLions given to us, rhc Company has not
glanted an) loans or provided any guaranrees or securir, to the pafiies covered under Secrion t8j ot
the Act. The Company has complied wilh the provisions of Section 186 ofthe Acr in respecl !o Lhe
loas given by it durine tle year.

(\,) Accordnrg to the infomatidn and explanations gtven !o us, the Company has not accepred any
deposits liorn the publlc or ainounrs which are deemed 10 be deposits wirhin ttre mcaning of Sections
7i. 74. 7i and 76 ol the Acr and Lhe Ruics liarned lherc under to the exlenr noriiied.

(vi) Pusuant to the r.ules nrade by rhe C€nlral Goler.nrent. rhe Compan) is not required ro rnaintain cosl
rccords under Section 148(1) ofthe Companies Acr, 2013.

(vii) (a) Accordiig !o rhe informatio! and explanatioDs given ro us, and lhe reco.ds ol-the Compa.),
examined by us- in our opinio!, rhe Company has generall) been regutar in deposjting wth the
appropdale authorities undisputed stalurory dues including goods and services tax, provident
1und. enrployees stale insurance, income-tax, duty of customs and orher nareriat statutor! dues
applicable to it. Fudher, no undisputed arnounts payabte in.especr thereofwere ourstandiDC ar rhe
yeaFend for a pedod ofmore than six months from rtre date lhey became payabte.

(b) Accordins to the rccords oflhe Company and as per the information and exptanations Biven 10 us,
there are no disputed stalurory dues in rcspecr ofsralutory dues as rcferred ro in sLrb- ct;use (a).

(viii) According 1o the inlbrmation and explanations given 10 us, and based on our examinalion orlhe
recods olthe Company, rhere are no rransactions which have not becn reco ed ;n the books otaccourri
and which have been sui€ndered or disctosed as income durin-q the ye in the rax assessments urder rhe
Income -l ar Acl. 1961.

(ir)(a) Based or our audit procedures! and according to Lhc intbrmalion and explanations given ro us, the
Company has not defaulred jn repaynrenl ot toans ol other borowings oiin the pay;enr of inrerest
rhereon ro any lender during the year.

(b) Based on our audir procedures, and according to the inlbrmation and exptanatioDs given Lo us, e
Company has not been deciarcd wiltul deiirutrer b) any bank or ltnanciai insrir!lio;or sove nnenr
o. a..) eo\e_1menr au ro-:.)

(c) AccordinS to the inlormation and exptanations given !o us by rhe managernenr. the Company has
not obtained any rerm loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ixxc) ofthe Order is not applicabte.

(d) Based on our audir procedures, and according to lhe infomarion and exptanations gilen ro us and
on an olerall examination ot the financialsratemenrs ofthe Company. ue rcporr thar-no lunds raiscd
onsho{-tembasisharebeenuljtisedfbrorg-rermp!.posesb\rheCornpa;ydutrerreyear.

(e) According to the informarion and explanarons siven to us and o. an overait examination otthe
financial statements of rhe Conrpany, we repori rhar rhe Coinpany has no subsidiaries, jotnr
lentures, or associaies. Accordinsly, ctause 3(ix)(e) olthe Order is not apptjcable.

(i) Based on our audil prccedures. and according to fie into rarion and erptanations gjven to us. rhe
company is not havins any subsjdiary. associare or joint ventufe. hence disctosu; under ctausej,rri. r. .eOrop.i. 10.:ppti.ao(.

E)G) l-he Company has no1 raised an) rnoney by way ot inirial pubLic olrer or r.urther pubtic oft.e.(includirg debt instrunents) during the year. Accordingty, rhe;epo ins under CtaLrse 3ixxa) ofLhc
said Order is not appticable to the CoDpany durjng rhe year.

ltrl A..oline rolhe inLm.riof .nJ.\f .frllidL t,o\
CoDpif\'s fccofds. thc Comfin) h.s nor nadc rn
shlrcs .r riLl\. t. tial\. or .ftio,,r i\ cor\orib c
l(\)tbl ol rhe Oracr is.or i|!t .abLc

idcl to us inJ brsed or our e\e.tDution oi rt,c
) t,elircrtiai .llolnrcnr nr p !are placcnrcnr ol'
dcbeitu,es auring Lh. )cu. \cco ajiglr-. ..r!sc



lxi)(a) Based upon Lhe audil proceduLes pelibNcd ibr lhe puDose olrepofting the true and iair view olt]re
financial statements and according 1o the intbrmation and explanations given to us- s'e rcporL Lhat no

lrand by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported durjng llre )eaL.

(b) Based upon the audit prccedures perfo ned for the purpose ofrcpoding ihe true and tair view oflhe
Unancial staternents and according to the intbmatjon and explanations giver !o us, lve repofi that Do

.epor1 under sub{cction ( l2) ol Section 143 ol the Acl has been filcd in Fom AD'L4 as prescribed

undc l e I I of Companies (Audit arrd A!dito$) Rules.2014 wilh the Cenlml Covcmrnenl.

(c) Based upon the audit procedures performed lbr the PurPose of reportine the tlue and lair !iew ollhe
tinancial statemerts and according 1o the lhloaration and explahations given 1o us- thele are no

whistle-blower complainls raceived by the Conrpany during the year.

(xii) In our opinion. and according to the inlomation and explanations given to us, lhe Compan) is nol a

Nidhi Company. Accordinsly, the pro!jsions of Clause .l(xii) of the said Order are not appljcable to

(iili) lhc Conrpan) has e.lered inlo ransactjons widr rclaied pa ies in compl;ance lvith the provisions ol'

Sections 177 and 188 ol'lhe Acl. The details olsuch relaled pa y tMnsaclions hale bee. disclosed ii
the financial stateinents as required under Ind AS 24. Related Party Disclos!rcs sPecilled undcr

Section I ji olthe Act.

(xi\r(a) ln our opinion and according ro lhe inlbmration and explanaiions siven to us, the Compan) has an

inlemal audit system commensulale with the si2e and nalurc ofits blrsirless.
(b) The rcports ofthe intenral auditor lor the period under audi! have beei considered by us.

(r!) According to the illomalion and explanations given to us. and based on our €\aninalion of the

records ollhe Company, the Company has not enlered inlo non cash n'ansactions u'ilh its DirecloE or
persDns connecred with them covered under Seclion I92 of the Act. AccordiDgly. Ihe reporting utdcr
Clause l(x!) olthe said Order is nor applicable to the Company durjng lhe year.

(x'i) (s) The Company is nol rcquired to be resisiercd under Seclion 45-lA ol-lhe Reserve Bank of l.dia
Act. 1934. Accordingly. the provisions ol Clause 3(x!i)(a) of the said Order are not applicable to

(b) Thc Compar) has ro! conducled anr for'banking ilnancial/housing ilnance acti!!ties during the

(c) lhc Co.rpan) js noL a Core lnleslrienr Co.rp.ny (ClC) as de|ned in the regularions DrarLe bt the
tteserle Brnk ol lndia. Accordingl). the pro!isions ol CLause l(r!j)(cl oi lhc iaid Order lrc rol
applicabLc to thc Conpr.).

(d) According 10 lhe informatjon and explanalions given 10 us. the Companv does not hale anl Core
lnlestment Company in its Group as per the regulations issucd b) the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordinsly, clause 3(xvi)(d) olthe Ordcr is not applicable 1,] the Conrpanl.

(xrll) Llre Cohfaf) has nol lncu,,ed xn) cish losses ir the unanci.l yc.r or ir rhe in ediatel) treccdirg

(rix)

(xviii) There has been no rcsignation of ihe statutory audjtolls durinS the year. Accordlngly. the rcpo(ing
urder CLause i(xviii) otlhe said Order is iot applicable to the Company during the ) ear.

According to the inl'onnation and explanations giyer to us and on thc basis ol linancial ratios (Lefer

nole 28.0). aSeing aDd expe.led dales ol realizarion ol linancial assets and pa\ rent ol' llnancial
liabilities. orher inlbflnation acconrpaDying Lhe ilnancial statenrenls, our knowledge of the Board of
Dircctors and management plans- and based on our examination ol the evidence supporii,rg the
assurnprions. nothjng has corne lo olr a!1en1ion. whlch causes us !o believe that any malerial
uncertajnt) cxisls as on the date ofthc audit repofi indicating lhat thc Comprny is not capable.f
nreeting lls liab;lj!ies exisling at the date ol balarce sheel as and when they l-all due withln a period oI
one year iiom the balance sheet date. We, howeler, state that this is not an assumnce as to the tirrure
!inbility ofthe Company. We lidlher state that our repofting is based on the thcls up 1o the date olthe
audil r€po.t and \re neithei gi!e an! guaranlee nor a1v assumnce that all liabiliLies in ine due withif g

pe od ofone year fiom the balance sheet date, will get discha.ged by the Cornpany as and when nrey



) (tx/ <aseda de thfimalan and explanattatts ptoide( to us, anl on the 6,tsr-s or,orr cxanliarr-o. or'.6e
Compan) s reco.ds. the Cornpany does not tirltill the criteria specified lnder Seclion I35(l) oI rlre
Companics Ac1. 2011. Therefore, CSR prcvisions arc not applicable to ihc Company. Conseqrenl t.
re]rorling ufder clausc 3(xx) olthe Companies (Auditof's Repo[) Order.2020 ]s |orapplicable.

\l.nrIershiI No.: 0?6216
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Annerure rB' to tIc IndepeDdent r\udiror,s Repoft

(Rcte.red to i,r paragmph 2(f) under lhe heading of.Reporr on Orher Lrg,t aDd Rcgulrtory
Rcquirenrents' ol ou. repol,t of eve, dar. to the ltember ot SNS pROpER'tr[S AND LIASTNC
LIMITED on thc fin.ncial statcmcnis .s or and for rlc ycAr.nded NIarch 3t, 2025)

Rcport on thc lntcrnnl Finxtrcial Confuols Over Firxncial R.porting under Chuse (i) ofsub,se(ion I of
Section 143 ofthe ConrPxni.s Act,2013 (.,theAc{,,)

We hale audiled the intemal firancial conr.ols orer linancial repol1ing ot SNS pROpERTtES AND
I,EASING LII\'IITED ( lhe Compan) ) as ol'March ll. 202j in coniuncrjo. \rirh our audtt ollhe financiat
statcDcnts ofthe Conrfafl 1br the year end€d on that dale

M.n.gement\ Responsibilily 1br Inrenal Financiil Cotrtrols

The CoiiPan)'s nranage.len! is responsible lbr esrdbtishing and maintaining inreinat ilnan.ta .ofl ots b.sed on
the iDlernal controls ovcr Unancial reporing criteria estabtished by lhe Compai! considotne the essenliat
coDponcnts ol interral coDn.ol stated in rhe Crtdance Nu. on cud ! ot lrrernrL l:inar!LaL Lontr.ols olci
Financir ltcporing (th. -Cuid!ncc Note ) issucd b! r re tlslilute ot Chanered  ccoufrrnls ol. tndia (-tCAl..).
lhesc rcsponslbii lies include rhe design. impternefrarion xnd naintenancc of adequdtc inre.irL ltndncir
conltuls thar Nere o|e !tifg etle.rl\el! lor ensuriig llre ordcr ) ard elltcjenr condu.t ol jrs bu!tness. tnct!.lirs
adherence to Conpan\'s po jcjcs. the saliguardine of tls asseB. rhe prevenljoD and detecLion ot rr.Luds rni
e ors. the accu.acr and conrplereness ofthe accountjng records. and lhc timety preprrattoi ol.retilbte tjianctal
inlbmatioi, as cqulrcd under lhc Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Orr responsibjlir) is ro erprcs in opjnion oD the tnterral financiat conlrols oler lindrci. reponjrg ot rtre
Conrpanl based or our audil. we conducted our rudit ii accordance with rre Cuidaice NoLc ard rhe SLaftarLts
.nAudiringpresdibeduDderSecront43(t0)olrheAct.torheerrentappiicabetoanaudirot.inrcrn.Linafci:!t
controls. bolh issucd by |CAL Those Srandards and the Cuidance Note reluire ihar rc comptr Nirh cthica
Eq!!.e,rienc and plarr and perlbro lhe audtt to obtain reaso.able assuknce abour rherhe adcqurre nLeD.r
unnncial controls o!er lhanciaL repodinB were eslablished and nrainrained afd il such cont;ots operare.t
ellecd!ely ii all rnatcrial rcspects.

Our audit involles peforming procedures to obtain alLdjt eridence aboul rhc ldeqLac) otthe inte,na finarciat
cornols sl stem oler llnafcial repodirg and thetr ope!rtng etitcri\ efcs. o!r audiio nre,nal unanc aLcofrrotso\rr 'lfrncl. rcnonirg iicluded obtaining ar undersofdjn-q ot nternal lin.n.il conl.oLs o\er Inancia
rcpo'ting. assc$irg the risk rhxr a nrarcriat $,eak.ess cxisrs. and tesrjng and e\a uaring the dcsign aid opeiatif-q
ellecrilcness o nleflral conlr'ol based on Lrrc assessed risk. The proccdrres sereclcJ dcpend;n trrc auditor's
lrdgmcnt. incl!diDB 6c xssessrnerr or'rhe risks ot,ate.iot nrissrate.ref! or'rre il.nnctat srarc,eils- n hctrrer due

we believe that Lhe audir e!idence we hale obtained is surficient and appropriare to provide a basis r'or ou audil
opi. iof on the Coh pan) s lnre, naL financial contrcls sysleD orcr i nancia L rcporling.

lUeanirg ol'lnternrl lrin.nci.l Conh.oh ovcr l:i]ratrcixl Rrporing

A conpan! s inrefial financial controt over financjat repo,.Ling k a prccess designed to prolidc rcasonabte
assu aicc rega.ding Lhe rcliabilitv oln.ancial Epoding lnd the p,epara onorrina;ciar slar;ments ror exlcrnal
purposcs in accordance *i!h genenlly accepted accounring pdnciptes. A company,s inlcrn.t Unarcirt conrol
o\er linancialrerro iDg iicrudes those poricies aid procedures trrar ( 1) perlain ro th; maifrcnance oIiccords rhar_

AARUSH RESIDENCY
FLAT NO A,2, 10/501,A
KHALASI LINES, KANPUR.2O8OO2
alokbasudeo.ca@gmail.com
Moh ro, 941503335X" 9335005X22

jn Easofablc detai . accumretr and 1ajrt, rcllcct the lr.ansacriors afd disposltions oldie asseLs oithe Conrparl,l
(2) pro!ide rcasonible assumn.e Lhal rr.ansact;ons are,e..rl..j is n eccssaq to pennit prepararjon of tlnanciaL
srabnrcrts in a.cordarce \rilh genemLl) accepted accornttng prtncjpl es- and Lhat recei|ls and erpendilures ol thc
Con,pan) are beifg nade ofL] h accordance wtlh aurhorjzarjo.s ol managenrenr and dircoLrxs ot rhe CoD])air:
and (3) prollde rcasonable as$rrance rcgarding prcventjon or rimel ! delecljon of unrurhorlzed ac
ordisNsjtior.i 1rcConrpany srssetsLtrarcoutjtrarcarrateriate litcl or dre fnafclaLn.r



Inheretrt Limit.tions oflnternal Financial Conh.ots over Finnnciiit Reporting

Because of lhe inhereni liNitations of internal financial conx.ots over financiat rcporli11g, including rhe
posibility of collusion or improper manngernent override oI conhots, marerial rnisstalemend due !o cror or
tiaud iiay occur and rot bc derected. ,Also. proiecrions otany evaluation oi rhc inrernal firafciat conrlols over
Iinancial reporlinS to tuture periods are srbiect Lo thc risk thal the jnternat Uiancjat con..ol oler financiat
rcportlng nra) become inadequare because ol changes ii conditions, or rhat rhe dceree of conptiance with the
polici.s or p.occd!.es m.\ deteriorare.

In our opinion, to the best olour infomlation, and according 10 lhe cxptanations gjven ro us, rhe Compan) has. in
all malerial rcspects. adequate intenral financiat conr.ots system over financial reporttis and such jntemat
llnancial contrch over financial rcpo{ing werc opernljng eU'ectivety as at March 31, 2025. bascd or ihe inrenrat
conx'ol over financial rcpo[ing criteria eslabUshed by rhe Company considering Lhe essenriat components ol.
irtemal control staled in the Cuidance Nore on Audir ot loLemal Financjat Controk Over financial Reporttig
issued by the Insrilure olCharrered Accounlants oft.dia.

For \lon lhsudco & ( r).

II.rnb..slip N..: (l?6216

t)lrc: tl1.0a.2025
t Dll\ - 250762l6tti\t I\\'\'u9278



(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
Note 
No.

 As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 0.42                                        0.03                                   

Sub-total 0.42                                        0.03                                   
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets:

(i) Trade Receivables 4.1 28.08                                      -                                     
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4.2 12.23                                      9.26                                   
(iii) Other financial assets 4.3 -                                          4.86                                   

(b) Current tax assets 5.0 1.71                                        -                                     
(c) Other current assets 6.0 -                                          10.00                                 

Sub-total 42.02                                      24.12                                 

42.44                                      24.15                                 

(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 7.0 99.42                                      99.42                                 
(b) Other equity 8.0 (76.32)                                     (80.33)                               

Sub-total 23.10                                      19.09                                 
(2) Liabilities

(2A) Non-current liabilities
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 9.0 (0.01)                                       -                                     

Sub-total (0.01)                                       -                                    
(2B) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities:

(i)    Borrowings 10.0 13.23                                      2.02                                   
(ii)   Other financial liabilities 11.0 1.44                                        2.05                                   

(b) Other current liabilities 12.0 4.68                                        -                                     
(c) Current tax liabilities (net) 13.0 -                                          0.99                                   

Sub-total 19.35                                      5.06                                   

42.44                                      24.15                                 

Material accounting policies 2.0 -                                          -                                     
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For Alok Basudeo & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007299C

(Prakash Chandra Pareek) (Prashant Khandelwal)
Managing Director & CFO Director

DIN: 01507921 DIN: 00482137

CA Alok Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 076216

Place: Kanpur Place: New Delhi
Date: May 1, 2025 Date: May 1, 2025

Company Secretary 
ACS: 75147

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(Sujata Kumari)



SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs.in Lakh)

Particulars Note No.
 For the year ended March 

31, 2025 
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

I INCOME
Revenue from operations 14.0 26.00                                        13.00                               
Other income 15.0 0.68                                          0.10                                 
Total income 26.68                                       13.10                              

II Expenses
Employee benefits expenses 16.0 2.66                                          2.76                                 
Finance costs 17.0 0.97                                          0.03                                 
Depreciation 18.0 0.15                                          -                                   
Other expenses 19.0 19.98                                        2.44                                 
Total expenses 23.77                                        5.23                                 

III Profit before tax (I-II) 2.91                                         7.87                                

IV Tax expenses 20.0
Current tax 0.95                                          2.05                                 
Deferred tax (0.01)                                         -                                   
Total tax expense 0.94                                         2.05                                

V Profit for the year (III-IV) 1.97                                         5.82                                

VI Other comprehensive income
a) i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -                                            -                                   

ii) Income tax relating above to items -                                            -                                   
b) i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                                            -                                   

ii) Income tax relating to above items -                                            -                                   
-                                           -                                  

VII Total comprehensive income for the year (V+VI) 1.97                                         5.82                                

VIII Earnings per share (Rs.) 21.0
Basic (face value of Rs 10/- per equity share) 0.20 0.59
Diluted (face value of Rs 10/- per equity share) 0.20 0.59

Material accounting policies 2.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached 
For Alok Basudeo & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007299C

(Prakash Chandra Pareek) (Prashant Khandelwal)
Managing Director & CFO Director

DIN: 01507921 DIN: 00482137

CA Alok Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 076216

Place: Kanpur Place: New Delhi
Date: May 1, 2025 Date: May 1, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Sujata Kumari)
Company Secretary 

ACS: 75147



SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars
Note No.  Year ended 

March 31, 2025 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2024 
A Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit/ (Loss) before tax as per statement of profit and loss 2.91                                            7.87                                            
Adjustments for: -                                              -                                              
Depreciation 0.15                                            -                                              
Liabilities no longer required written back -                                              -                                              
Interest expense -                                              -                                              
Loss on sale of fixed assets 0.02                                            -                                              
Interest income (0.60)                                           -                                              

Operating profit before working capital changes 2.48                                            7.87                                            
Movements in working capital: 
Increase in trade receivables (28.08)                                         -                                              
Decrease/ (increase) in other current financial assets 4.86                                            (4.86)                                           
(Decrease)/ increase in other current financial liabilities (0.60)                                           1.70                                            
Increase in other current liabilities and provisions 4.68                                            -                                              
Decrease in other current assets 7.34                                            0.15                                            

Changes in working capital (11.80)                                         (3.01)                                           
Cash generated/ (used) in operations (9.32)                                           4.86                                            
Direct taxes (paid)/ refund received 1.06                                            (1.06)                                           
Net Cash generated/ (used) in operating activities (A) (8.26)                                           3.80                                            

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (0.58)                                           -                                              
Sale of fixed assets 0.01                                            -                                              
Interest received 0.60                                            -                                              
Net Cash used in investing activities (B) 0.03                                            -                                              

C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from short term borrowings 11.20                                          2.03                                            
Finance cost paid -                                              -                                              
Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C) 11.20                                          2.03                                            

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2.97                                            5.83                                            

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9.26                                            3.43                                            

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4.2 12.23                                          9.26                                            

Notes:

Material accounting policies 2.0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached 
For Alok Basudeo & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007299C

(Prakash Chandra Pareek) (Prashant Khandelwal)
Managing Director & CFO Director

DIN: 01507921 DIN: 00482137
CA Alok Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 076216

Place: Kanpur
Date: May 1, 2025 Place: New Delhi

Date: May 1, 2025

(Sujata Kumari)
Company Secretary 

ACS: 75147

For and On behalf of the board of directors 

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'.



SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity share capital (Rs. in Lakh)
As at April 1, 2023 99.42                                
Changes in equity share capital during the year -                                    
As at March 31, 2024 99.42                                
Changes in equity share capital during the year -                                    
As at March 31, 2025 99.42                                

B. Other equity (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars  Retained earnings  Total  

Balance as at April 1, 2023 (86.16)                                        (86.16)                               
Profit for the year 5.82                                           5.82                                  
Other comprehensive income for  the year -                                             -                                    
Total comprehensive income for the year 5.82                                           5.82                                  
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (80.33)                                        (80.33)                               
Profit for the year 1.97                                           1.97                                  
Other comprehensive income for  the year -                                             -                                    
Provision for tax of earlier years written back 2.04                                           2.04                                  
Total comprehensive income for the year 1.97                                           1.97                                  
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (76.32)                                        (76.32)                               

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Alok Basudeo & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007299C

CA Alok Gupta (Prakash Chandra Pareek) (Prashant Khandelwal)
Partner Managing Director & CFO Director
Membership No. 076216 DIN: 01507921 DIN: 00482137

Place: Kanpur
Date: May 1, 2025

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 1, 2025

For and On behalf of the board of directors 

(Sujata Kumari)
Company Secretary 

ACS: 75147



 
 
SNS Properties and Leasing Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2025 
 
1.0 Corporate information 

SNS Properties and Leasing Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company, incorporated in India 
on 6th May, 1985, listed on the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company is having 
its Registered Office at Unit 204, Plaza P-3, Central Square 20, Manohar Lal Khurana Marg, Bara Hindu 
Rao, Delhi – 110006. The Company is engaged in consulting, advising, collection and providing services 
for the management of all types of waste. 

 
2.0 Summary of Material Accounting Policies 

a) Basis of preparation 
(i) Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(‘IND AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other 
relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI). 
 
The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial 
statements. 
 

(ii)  Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost convention with 
the exception of certain financial assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values at the 
end of each reporting period by Ind AS. 

 
(iii) Current versus non-current classification 

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal 
operating cycle and other criterion set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the 
nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in 
cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle to be 12 months for the 
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

 
(iv) Rounding of amounts 

 All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs 
as per the requirement of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, unless otherwise stated.  
 

b) Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions, based upon the best knowledge of current 
events and actions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of incomes and expenses during 
the reported period. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Any difference between the actual 
results and the estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/ materialised. 

 
c) Revenue recognition 

The specific criterion for each of the Company’s activities has been stated below: 
 

(i) Commission/ consultancy receipt 
Revenue is recognized upon delivery of services to customers and generally recognized in the year in 
the billing is made. Revenue is measured based on transaction price. 

 
(ii) Interest income 

Interest income is recognized on time proportion accrual basis using the applicable/ effective interest 
rate.  

       
  



 
 
SNS Properties and Leasing Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2025 
 

                 
d) Taxes  

(i) Current income-tax 
Current income-tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those 
that are enacted or substantially enacted, at the reporting date. 

 
(ii) Deferred income-tax 

Deferred income-tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements. 
Deferred income-tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred 
income-tax assets are realised or the deferred income-tax liabilities are settled. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, 
only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary 
differences and losses. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a 
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that 
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the 
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part 
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each 
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits 
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. 

 
e) Property, plant and equipment 

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost 
includes all expenditure necessary to bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the Statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

 
Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use are disclosed under capital 
work-in-progress. Expenditure during construction period (including borrowing cost relating to 
borrowed funds for construction or acquisition of property, plant and equipment) incurred on projects/ 
assets, including trial run expenses (net of revenue) are treated as pre-operative expenses, pending 
allocation to the assets, and are included under capital work-in-progress. These expenses are apportioned 
to related property, plant and equipment on commencement of commercial production. Capital work-in-
progress is stated at the amount expended up to the date of the balance sheet. 
 
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on Written Down Value Method (‘WDV’).   
 
The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed 
in Schedule II to the Act, and management believes that the useful life of assets are same as those 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Act, except for certain plant & equipment, wherein based on technical 
evaluation, useful life has been estimated to be different from that prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. 



 
 
SNS Properties and Leasing Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2025 
 

 
Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for various assets class are as follows:  
 
Assets Useful life 
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Office equipment (including computers, computers equipment and servers) 3-10 years

 
Residual value of the tangible assets is considered to be not more than 5% of the cost of the asset. 
 

f) Borrowings 
Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost. 
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 

 
g) Borrowing costs 

Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets, which takes substantial period of time 
to get ready for its intended use, are capitalized. All other interest and borrowing costs are charged to the 
statement of profit and loss. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as 
an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

 
h) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. When 
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to its recoverable amount. 
 
Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Non-financial assets that 
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. 

 
i) Provisions and contingent liabilities 
(i) Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the 
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the 
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the liability.  
 

(ii) Contingent liabilities 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their 
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in 
terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. The 
Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements 
unless the probability of outflow of resource is remote. 
 
Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

 
j) Employee Benefits 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, that are expected to be settled wholly 
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, are 
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

 



 
 
SNS Properties and Leasing Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2025 
 

k)    Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash 
at banks and on hand, bank overdrafts and short-term deposits with an original maturities of three months 
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
l)    Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
(a) Financial assets 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. 

 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed to 
statement of profit and loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a 
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised 
on the trade date, i.e., the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 
Subsequent measurement 
For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
 
- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
 
- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of 

cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments) 
 
- Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses  
  upon derecognition (equity instruments); and 
 
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
 
Derecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognised when: 
 
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
 
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 

to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 
Impairment of financial assets  
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets 
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables and other contractual rights 
to receive cash or other financial asset.  
 
(b) Financial liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives. All financial liabilities are recognised initially 
at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction 
costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings 
including derivative financial instruments.  



 
 
SNS Properties and Leasing Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2025 
 

 
Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
 
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings) 
 
Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another financial liability from the same lender 
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss. 
 

m)  Earnings per share 
 (i) Basic earnings per share 

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the 
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year. 

  
(ii) Diluted earnings per share 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders of the Company and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares. 
 

n) Segment reporting 
Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that the Company report information about operating 
segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas and major customers. 
The Company’s operations currently comprise of only one segment i.e. consulting, advising, collection 
and providing services for management of all types of waste, which are mainly having similar risks and 
returns. Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, the management reviews and 
measure the operating results taking the whole business as one segment (waste management services). 
In view of the same, separate primary segment information is not required to be given as per the 
requirements of Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments”. 
 
The Company does not have secondary segment division in respect of reportable segments. 

 
 

  
 



SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ending March 31, 2025

3.1 Property plant and equipment (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Computer Air Conditioner Office Equipment Total

Gross block

As at April 1, 2023 0.18                    0.12                    0.26                        0.56                          

Additions -                      -                      -                          -                            

Disposals -                      -                      -                          -                            

As at March 31, 2024 0.18                    0.12                    0.26                        0.56                          

Additions 0.57                    -                      -                          0.57                          

Disposals (0.18)                   (0.12)                   (0.26)                       (0.56)                        

As at March 31, 2025 0.57                    -                      -                          0.57                          

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 1, 2023 0.17                    0.11                    0.24                        0.53                          

Charge for the year -                      -                      -                          -                            

Disposals -                      -                      -                          -                            

As at March 31, 2024 0.17                    0.11                    0.24                        0.53                          

Charge for the year 0.15                    -                      -                          0.15                          

Disposals (0.17)                   (0.11)                   (0.24)                       (0.53)                        

As at March 31, 2025 0.15                    -                      -                          0.15                          

Net block

As at March 31, 2024 0.01                    0.01                    0.01                        0.03                          

As at March 31, 2025 0.42                    -                      -                          0.42                          

3.2 There is no impairment loss during the year ending March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

3.3 There is no contractual commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

3.4 There is no project which has temporarily been suspended. 

4.0 Current financial assets

4.1 Trade receivables (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

Trade receivables 28.08                      -                            

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables -                          -                            

Total 28.08                      -                           

Break-up:

Receivables considered good - secured -                          -                            

Receivables considered good - unsecured 28.08                      -                            

Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -                          -                            

Receivables - credit impaired -                          -                            

Receivables considered doubtful - unsecured -                          -                            

28.08                      -                            

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables -                          -                            

Total 28.08                      -                           

Note:

3) Refer note 26.0 & 27.0 for information about fair value measurement, credit risk and market risk of trade receivables.

4) Refer note 30.0 for ageing schedule of trade receivables.

2) No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. 

1. Trade receivables represents the amount of consideration, in exchange for services rendered to the customers, that is unconditional. There are no contract assets and contract
liabilities.



4.2 Cash and cash equivalents (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Balances with banks:

 - On current accounts 11.59                      9.08                          

Cash on hand 0.64                        0.18                          

Total 12.23                      9.26                          

4.3 Other financial assets (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Loan to a body corporate (given for meeting business requirement)
(Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs.4.71 Lakh (March 
31, 2024: Rs. 4.86 lakh))

-                          4.86                          

Break-up:

Loans considered good - secured -                          -                            

Loans considered good - unsecured -                          4.86                          

Loans which have significant increase in credit risk -                          -                            

Loans - credit impaired -                          -                            

Total -                          4.86                          

Less: Allowance for doubtful loans -                          -                            

Total -                          4.86                          

Refer note 27.0 for information about credit risk and market risk of loans.

There is no credit impairment loss in respect to above loans and advances.

           

5.0 Current tax assets (net) (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Income tax deducted at source 1.71                        -                            

Total 1.71                        -                           

6.0 Other current assets (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good

Advance against purchase of property -                          10.00                        

Total -                          10.00                        



7.0 Share Capital (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Authorised
2,00,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 50,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,000.00                 500.00                      

Total 2,000.00                 500.00                      
Issued

10,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 10,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 100.00                    100.00                      

Total 100.00                    100.00                      

Subscribed and fully paid up

9,76,700 (March 31, 2024: 9,76,700) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 97.67                      97.67                        

Total 97.67                      97.67                        

Subscribed but not fully paid up
23,300 (March 31, 2024: 23,300) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, paid 
up Rs. 7.50 each

1.75                        1.75                          

Total 1.75                        1.75                          

Total paid-up 99.42                      99.42                        

Notes:

i) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Fully paid up Partly paid up Fully paid up Partly paid up

As at the beginning of the year 9,76,700             23,300                9,76,700                 23,300                      

Add: Shares issued during the year -                      -                      -                          -                            

As at the end of the year 9,76,700             23,300                9,76,700                 23,300                      

Name of the shareholders

No.  % holding No.  % holding 

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Mr. Anil Kumar 73,250                7.33% 73,250                    7.33%

Name of the Promoters
 No. of 
Shares 

 % holding  
 % change 

during the year 
 No. of Shares  % holding  

 % change during 
the year 

Mr. Anil Kumar 73,250         7.33% -                      73,250                7.33% -                            

Total 

Particulars

 As at 
March 31, 2025

(No) 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

(No) 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. The voting right on each equity share (whether fully paid or partly paid) shall be in proportion to 
such share in the paid-up equity share capital of the company. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual
general meeting except in the case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024

ii) The rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital:

iii) Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than five per cent:

iv) Shares held by the promoters at the end of the year:

 As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024

v) The Company has neither issued shares for a consideration other than cash/ bonus shares nor bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the 
reporting date.



8.0 Other Equity (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Retained earnings (76.32)                     (80.33)                      

Opening balance (80.33)                     (86.16)                      

Adjustment during the year:

Net Profit for the year 1.97                        5.82                          

Other comprehensive income (net) for the year -                          -                            

Add: Provision for tax of earlier years written back 2.04                        -                            

Closing balance                      (76.32)                        (80.33)

9.0 Deferred tax liabilities (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Deferred tax asset                              -                                -   
Sub-total

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment                        (0.01)                           0.00 

Sub-total                        (0.01)                           0.00 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) Total                        (0.01)                           0.00 

9.1 Movement of deferred tax liabilities 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

As at the beginning of the year 0.00                        0.00                          

Credit to statement of profit and loss (0.01)                       -                            

Closing Balance (0.01)                       0.00                          

10.0 Borrowings (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025 
 As at 

March 31, 2024 

Current borrowings

Loan repayable on demand (unsecured) carrying interest rate of 12% 
p.a. (March 31, 2024: 8% p.a.)

12.50                      2.00                          

Add: Interest accrued and due 0.73                        0.02                          

Total 13.23                      2.02                          

Note:

i) The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable during the year and has satisfied all debt covenants prescribed in terms of the loans.

ii) Refer Note 27 for liquidity risk.

iii) Net debt reconciliation -                       (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Current and non-current borrowings 12.50 2.00

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (12.23) (9.26)

Interest payable                          0.73                          0.02 

Net debt                          1.00 -7.24

                         -   

Particulars  Current & Non-
current 

borrowings 

Cash and cash 
equivalents

 Interest payable   Total 

Net debt as at April 1, 2023                         -   (3.43)  -                          (3.43)
Cash flows 2.00 (5.82)                              -                            (3.82)
Interest expense                          -                            -                            0.02                          0.02 
Interest paid                          -                            -                                -                                - 
Net debt as at March 31, 2024 2.00 (9.26) 0.02                          (7.24)
Cash flows 10.50 (2.97)                                                -   7.53 
Interest expense                         -                            -                            0.96 0.96 
Interest paid                         -                            -                          (0.25) (0.25)
Net debt as at March 31, 2025 12.50 (12.23) 0.73                          1.00 



11.0 Other current financial liabilities (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

Salary payable 0.33                        1.04                          

Liability for expenses 0.56                        0.23                          

Audit fees payable 0.40                        0.30                          

Other payables 0.15                        0.48                          

Total 1.44                        2.05                          

12.0 Other current  liabilities (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

Statutory dues payables 4.68                        -                            

Total 4.68                        -                           

13.0 Current tax liabilities (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

Provision for income tax -                          2.05

Less: Advances tax/ tds recoverable -                          1.06

Net Tax payable -                          0.99

14.0 Revenue from operations (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024

Sale of services

Consultancy income 26.00                      8.00                          

Other operating revenues

Commission Income -                          5.00                          

Total 26.00                      13.00                        

15.0 Other income (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024

Interest received 0.60                        0.10                          

Liabilities no longer required written back 0.08                        -                            

Total 0.68                        0.10                          



16.0 Employee benefits expenses (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024

Salaries and other allowances 2.66                        2.71                          

Exgratia -                          0.05                          

Total 2.66                        2.76                          

17.0 Finance costs (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024

Interest paid 0.96                        0.02                          

Bank charges 0.01                        -                            

Total 0.97                        0.02                          

18.0 Depreciation (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 0.15                        -                            

Total 0.15                        -                           

19.0 Other expenses (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024

Advertisement and publicity 0.35                        0.56                          

Fee and taxes -                          0.13                          

Legal and professional charges 4.12                        0.65                          

Listing fee 0.65                        0.65                          

Payment to auditors (refer details below) 0.55                        0.39                          

Printing and stationery -                          0.02                          

Prior period expenses 0.77                        -                            

Website charges -                          0.04                          

Loss on sale of fixed assets 0.02                        -                            

General expenses 0.03                        -                            

Fee paid for increase in authorised capital 13.50                      -                            

Total 19.98                      2.44                          

Break-up of payment to auditors:

As auditor:

 - Audit fee 0.40                        0.30                          

 - Limited review fee 0.15                        0.07                          

 - Certification -                          0.02                          

Total 0.55                        0.39                          



20.0 Tax expense (Rs. in Lakh)

20.1 The major components of income-tax expense are as under:

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024

A) Profit and loss section

Current tax

In respect of current year 0.95                        2.05                          

Sub-total 0.95                        2.05                          

Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (0.01)                       -                            

Sub-total (0.01)                       -                           

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 0.94                        2.05                          

20.2

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024

Accounting profit before income-tax 2.91                        7.87                          

Enacted income-tax rate applicable to the Company 25.168% 25.168%

Current tax expense on profit before tax at the enacted income- 0.73                        1.98                          

Permanent disallowances 3.59                       -                          
Difference due to brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation (3.39)                       -                            

Recognition of net deferred tax assets -                          -                            

Others 0.00                        0.07                          

Total income-tax expense 0.94                        2.05                          
Effective tax rate 32.259% 26.057%

21.0 Earnings Per Share

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024

Earning per share has been computed as under:

Profit after tax (Rs. in Lakh) 1.97                        5.82                          

Denominator for earning per share

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Numbers) 9,94,175                 9,94,175                   

Earnings per share (Rs.) - Basic (face value of Rs. 10 per share) 0.20                        0.59                          

Earnings per share (Rs.) - Diluted (face value of Rs. 10 per share) 0.20                        0.59                          

22.0 Commitments and contingencies (to the extent not provided for)
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

Commitments -                          -                            
Contingent liabilities -                          -                            

23.0 Details of corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenditure
Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

24.0 Segment information
24.1 Primary segment (by business segment):

24.2 Secondary segment (by geographical demarcation):
The Company does not have secondary segment division in respect of reportable segments.

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that the Company report information about operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas and
major customers. The Company's operations comprises of only one segment i.e. consulting, advising, collection and providing services for management of all types of waste, which
are mainly having similar risks and returns. Based on the "management approach" as defined in Ind AS 108, the management reviews and measure the operating results taking the
whole business as one segment (waste management services). In view of the same, separate primary segment information is not required to be given as per the requirements of Ind AS
108 on "Operating Segments".

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applying the statutory income-tax rate to the profit before tax is as under:



SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending March 31, 2025

25.0 Related party disclosures
25.1 Name of related parties and description of relationship:

A. Key management personnel
Shri Prakash Chandra Pareek Managing Director and CFO w.e.f. 13.10.2023
Shri Sarthak Agarwal Non-Executive Director w.e.f. 13.10.2023
Shri Prashant Khandelwal Non-Executive Director w.e.f. 20.07.2024
Shri Sushant Jain Non-Executive Director w.e.f. 20.07.2024
Shri Rajkumar Independent Director
Shri Rishabh Talwar Independent Director w.e.f. 13.10.2023
Ms. Anisha Malik Independent Director w.e.f. 13.10.2023
Shri Kamal Kishore Sharma Director till 09.11.2023
Smt. Harwinder Kaur Director till 09.11.2023
Shri Mandeep Director till 09.11.2023
Shri Deepanshu Modgill Chief Financial Officer till 01.12.2023
Smt. Manpreet Kaur Company Secretary till 31.07.2023
Shri Mohit Verma Company Secretary from 10.08.2023 to 01.12.2023
Shri Adhish Swaroop Company Secretary from 20.12.2023 to 30.10.2024
Ms. Sujata Kumari Company Secretary w.e.f. 14.11.2024

B. Entities controlled by key management personnel or their relatives
Securocrop Business Re-engineering Private Limited
Gin Spin Private Limited

25.2 Summary of transactions during the year: (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Key 

management 
personnel

Entities controlled 
by key 

management 
personnel or their 

relatives
Transaction during the year
Salary March 31, 2025 2.66                    -                          

March 31, 2024 2.71                    -                          

Consultancy Income March 31, 2025 -                      26.00                      
March 31, 2024 -                      8.00                        

Interest expense March 31, 2025 -                      0.16                        
March 31, 2024 0.02                    -                          

Unsecured loan accepted March 31, 2025 -                      -                          
March 31, 2024 -                      2.00                        

Unsecured loan repaid March 31, 2025 -                      2.00                        
March 31, 2024 -                      -                          

Amount outstanding at balance sheet date
Unsecured loan outstanding March 31, 2025 -                      -                          

March 31, 2024 -                      2.00                        

Interest payable March 31, 2025 -                      -                          
March 31, 2024 -                      0.02                        

Salary payable March 31, 2025 0.33                    -                          
March 31, 2024 1.00                    -                          

25.3 No amount has been written off or written back during the year in respect of debts due from or to related parties.



SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending March 31, 2025

26.0 Financial instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Financial assets (Rs. in Lakh)

Carrying 
amount

Fair value Carrying 
amount

Fair value

1. Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL)

2. Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)
3. Financial assets designated at amortized
cost
a) Trade receivables B Level 3 28.08        28.08             - - 
b) Cash and cash equivalents B Level 3 12.23        12.23             9.26 9.26 
g) Other financial assets B Level 3 -            - 4.86 4.86 

Total 40.31        40.31             14.12                 14.12 

Financial liabilities (Rs. in Lakh)

Carrying 
amount

Fair value Carrying 
amount

Fair value

1. Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit and loss
2. Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income

-            - - - 

3. Financial liabilities designated at
amortized cost
a) Borrowings A, B Level 3 13.23        13.23             2.02 2.02 
c) Other financial liabilities B Level 3 1.44          1.44               2.05 2.05 

Total 14.67        14.67             4.07 4.07 

27.1 Finnacial risk management

ꞏ  Credit risk

ꞏ  Liquidity risk, and

ꞏ  Market risk
A

B

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

A. The Company has adopted effective interest rate for calculating interest expense. Processing fees and transaction costs relating to each loan has been considered
for calculating effective interest rate. The fair values of non-current borrowings are classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable
inputs including own credit risk.

B. Fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other current financial assets, current borrowings and other financial liabilities are considered to be the
same as their carrying amount due to short-term maturities of these instruments. 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

As at 
March 31, 2024

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Particulars Note
reference as 
mentioned 

above

Fair value 
hierarchy

As at 
March 31, 2025

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to their fair values.

The Company has exposure to the following risk arising from financial instruments:

Credit Risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risk. Credit risk is controlled by analysing
credit limits and credit-worthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. Financial
instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, investments, loans and other financial assets. None of the financial
instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time, or at a reasonable price. Processes and policies related
to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitors company’s net liquidity position rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Particulars Note
reference as 
mentioned 

above

Fair value 
hierarchy

As at 
March 31, 2025



a) Financing arrangements

b) Contractual maturities of financial liabilities (Rs. in Lakh)
As at March 31, 2025 0-1 years 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 

years
Total

Current borrowings 13.23       -            -                 - 13.23 

Other financial liabilities 1.44         -            -                 - 1.44 

Total 14.67       -            -                 - 14.67 

(Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31, 2024 0-1 years 1-2 years 2-5 years
More than 5 

years
Total

Current borrowings 2.02         -            -                 - 2.02 

Other financial liabilities 2.05         -            -                 - 2.05 

Total 4.07         -            -                 - 4.07 

C

27.2 Capital risk management

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period is as under: (Rs.  in Lakh)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025
As at 

March 31, 2024

Current and non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 12.50 2.00 
Debt (A) 12.50                 2.00 
Total equity (B) 23.10 19.09 
Equity and debt (C =A+B) 35.60                 21.09 
Gearing ratio (A/C) 35.11% 9.48%

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise
two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instrument affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings, deposits and investments. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. 

The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to its shareholders. The
capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs.
The Company considers the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain
investor's, creditor's and market's confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to
maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure in consonance with its long term strategic plans. 

The Company believes that it has sufficient liquid funds to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. 



SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending March 31,2025

28.0 Analytical ratios
Ratios Numerator Denominator FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 % variance Reason for 

variance
a. Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 2.17 4.77 -54% Ratio declined due 

to increase in 
borrowings 

b. Debt-equity ratio Total debt 
(borrowings)

Total Equity 0.57 0.11 441% Ratio declined due 
to increase in 
borrowings 

c. Debt-service coverage ratio Profit before tax 
+depreciation+ 
finance costs

Finance costs + 
repayments of 
borrowings

0.33 3.84 -91% Ratio declined due 
to lower profits and 
higher finance cost

d. Return on equity Profit after tax Average total equity 9.34% 36.01% -74% Ratio declined due 
to lower profits and 
higher admin and 

operating costs

e. Inventory turnover ratio Sale of products Average inventory NA NA NA -  
f. Trade receivables turnover ratio Sale of products

Trade receivables

0.93 NA 100% Ratio not 
comparable as there 
were no receivables 

in last year

g. Trade payables turnover ratio Consumption of 
materials

Trade payables NA NA NA
-  

h. Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from 
operations

Net working capital 
(Current assets - 
current liabilities)

1.15 0.68 68% Ratio improved due 
to higher revenue

i. Net profit ratio Profit after tax Revenue from 
operations

7.58% 44.80% -83% Ratio declined due 
to lower profits and 
higher admin and 

operating costs

j. Return on capital employed Profit before tax 
and exceptional 
items + finance 
costs

Average capital 
employed (total 
equity + total 
borrowings)

18.39% 45.96% -60% Ratio declined due 
to lower profits and 
higher admin and 

operating costs

k. Return on investment Income from 
investments

Average funds 
invested in 
investments

NA NA NA NA

29.0 Disclosures as per Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has not given any guarantee or provided any security during the year

30.0 Trade receivables ageing schedule
a. As at March 31, 2025 (Rs. in Lakh)

Not due Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables
 - considered good 28.08       - - -                -                - 28.08
 - considered doubtful -           - - -                -                - -

28.08       - - -                -                - 28.08
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts -
Total 28.08
There were no trade receivables as at March 31, 2024, hence ageing schedule for the same is not applicable.

31.0

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

During the year, the Company had given unsecured loan amounting to Rs. 8.00 lakh (March 31, 2024: Rs. 4.75 lakh) to body corporate(s) for business purpose
and the entire amount has been repaid during the year.

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted
in respect of accounting software and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirement for record retention.



32.0 Other statutory information

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

33.0 Dues to micro and small enterprises

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2025
As at March 31, 

2024

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year Nil Nil
b) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year Nil Nil
c)

Nil Nil
d)

Nil Nil
e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year Nil Nil
f)

Nil Nil

34.0

As per our report of even date attached
For Alok Basudeo & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 007299C

(Prakash Chandra Pareek) (Prashant Khandelwal)

Managing Director & CFO Director

DIN: 01507921 DIN: 00482137

CA Alok Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 076216

Place: Kanpur Place: New Delhi

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act,
1956.
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of 
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the Rules made thereunder.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to current year's classification.

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries), or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961).

The Company has not borrowed any funds, secured or unsecured, from any bank and financial institutions and it has not been declared as wilful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful
defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement, during the year, which has any impact on financial results or position of the Company.

(Sujata Kumari)

The Company is in compliance with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restrictions on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Company Secretary 

ACS: 75147

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies
Act, 2013) either severally or jointly with any other person that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company has made no transactions (March 31, 2024: Rs. Nil) with supplier registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 (MSMED Act). The disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

Date: May 1, 2025 Date: May 1, 2025
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SNS PROPERTIES AND LEASING LIMITED 
CIN: L38210DL1985PLC020853 

Regd. Office: Unit 204 Plaza P-3 Central Square 20 Manohar Lal, Khurana Marg Bara Hindu Rao,  

Delhi Sadar Bazar, Delhi, India- 110006 

[E-Mail: sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com] [Tel. No. +91 7992313157] [Website: www.snsind.in] 

 

NOTICE 

 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-Ninth Annual General Meeting of the Members of SNS 

Properties and Leasing Limited will be held on Tuesday, the 30th day of September 2025, at 2:00 P.M. 

(IST) through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following 

business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider, and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and 

Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Sarthak Agarwal (DIN: 09785554), who retires by rotation 

and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. To take approval of members for granting loan, giving guarantee and/or providing security 

to all person covered under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in this regard to 

consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed by the Members at the 38th Annual 

General Meeting held on August 13, 2024 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 185 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Companies (Meetings 

of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications, clarifications, 

substitutions or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) , consent of the Members be and is 

hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, 

which term shall include, unless the context otherwise requires, any Committee of the Board or any 

Director(s) or Officer(s) duly authorised by the Board), to advance loan(s) in one or more tranches-

including loan(s) represented by way of book debt and/or giving of guarantee(s), and/or providing of 

security(ies) in connection with any Loan taken by any person or entity in whom any of the Director 

is interested in terms of Section 185 of the Act, up to an aggregate amount not exceeding 

₹100,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Crores Only) at any point of time, on such terms and 

conditions as the Board, in its absolute discretion, may deem beneficial and in the best interest of the 

Company, provided that such loan(s) are utilised by such persons or entities only for their principal 

business activities.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to negotiate, finalize and 

agree the terms and conditions of the aforesaid loan/guarantee/security and to do all such acts, deeds 

and things as may be necessary and incidental including signing and/or execution of any deeds/ 

documents/ undertakings/ agreements/ papers/ writings for giving effect to the aforesaid Resolution.” 

 

4. To take approval for members for granting loans, giving guarantees or securities and 

making investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and, in this regard, to 

consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 

mailto:sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com
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“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed by the Members at the 38th Annual 

General Meeting held on  August 13, 2024 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 and other 

applicable provision, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board 

and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the 

time being in force) and subject to all  other  requisite approvals, sanctions, permissions, if required 

from any authority and subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by any of the concerned 

Authorities and, the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the  Board  of Directors 

(hereinafter  referred to as “the Board” which expression shall include its duly authorized  Committee  

or any individual Director): 

 

a. to invest/acquire from time to time by way of subscription, purchase, conversion or otherwise 

Equity Shares, Preference Shares, Debentures (whether convertible or non-convertible) or any 

other financial instruments of one or more Bodies Corporate, whether in India or outside; 

 

b. to give from time to time any loan or loans to any Body or Bodies Corporate, whether in India or 

outside, or any other person, body or entity; 

 

c. to give from time to time any guarantee(s) and/or provide any security, in connection with any 

loan(s) made, by any other person(s) to, or to any other person(s) by, any Body Corporate, 

whether in India or outside; 

 

notwithstanding the fact that such loan/guarantee/investment to be so given, provided or made 

together with the loans/guarantees/investments already given, provided or made may exceed sixty 

percent of the aggregate of the Paid-up Share Capital, free reserves and securities premium account 

of the Company or one hundred percent of its free reserves and securities premium account, 

whichever is more.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in addition to the above, the Board of the Company be and is 

hereby authorized to make investments, give loans and/ or provide guarantee(s)/security to other 

bodies corporate or other persons and entities provided that the aggregate of the investments made, 

loans given and security/ guarantee(s) provided shall not at any time exceed Rs. 100,00,00,000/- 

(Rupees One Hundred Crore only).” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to determine the actual sum 

or sums to be loaned to and/or guaranteed or invested in the Equity Share Capital or Preference 

Share Capital or other securities of the said Bodies Corporate out of the above limit and to determine 

the time and manner of making such loans and/or providing guarantees/security or making such 

investments and generally to deal with and decide all or any matter arising out of or incidental to the 

same and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things for giving effect to this resolution including 

any change(s), amendment(s) or modification(s) as it may in its absolute discretion deem fit and 

proper.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above Resolution , the 

Board/Committee be and is hereby authorized to agree, make, accept and finalize all such terms, 

condition(s), modification(s) and alteration(s) as it may deem fit including the terms and conditions 

within the above limit up to which  such investments/loans/guarantees, that may be made or given , 

as may be determined by the Board or the Committee thereof, including with the power to 

transfer/dispose of the investments so made, from time to time, and generally to deal with and decide 

all or any matter arising out of or incidental to the same and the Board/Committee is also hereby 

authorized to resolve and settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to making 

such investments,  loans and/or providing guarantee or  security and to finalize and execute all 

agreements, documents, and writings and to do all acts, deeds and things in this connection and 

incidental as the Board/Committee in its absolute discretion may deem fit without being required to 

seek any further consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall 

be deemed to have been given approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.” 
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Date: August 19, 2025                                                                                     By Order of the Board         

 

 

 Sd/- 

Registered Office: Unit 204 Plaza                                                                           Sujata Kumari 

P-3 Central Square 20 Manohar Lal                                                                 Company Secretary 

Khurana Marg Bara Hindu Rao,                                                                                 ACS: 75147 

Delhi Sadar Bazar, North Delhi, India, 110006 

 

 

NOTES: 

 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), vide its General Circulars dated May 5, 2020 (No. 

20/2020), May 5, 2022 (No. 02/2022), December 28, 2022 (No. 10/2022), September 25, 2023 (No. 

09/2023) and most recently September 19, 2024 (No. 09/2024), and the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (“SEBI”), vide its circulars dated May 12, 2020, May 13, 2022, January 5, 2023, 

October 7, 2023, and most recently October 3, 2024 (SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133), 

have permitted the convening of Annual General Meetings (“AGMs”) through Video Conferencing 

(“VC”) or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) without requiring physical presence of members at a 

common venue. These relaxations are applicable for AGMs scheduled for the years 2024 and 2025, 

and allow such meetings to be held virtually up to September 30, 2025. These extensions do not 

extend the statutory timelines fixed under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) for holding AGMs. 

Accordingly, in compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI circulars, applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the 39th AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. 

The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company located at Unit 204, 

Plaza P-3, Central Square, 20 Manohar Lal Khurana Marg, Bara Hindu Rao, Sadar Bazar, 

Delhi – 110006. 

 

2. Since the AGM is being held through VC/OAVM in accordance with the applicable MCA and SEBI 

Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 

appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for this AGM and, hence, the Proxy 

Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map of the venue are not annexed to this Notice. 

 

3. Participation of Members through VC/OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the 

AGM in accordance with Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

4. Members desiring to raise queries on matters listed in the Notice may write to the Company at its 

Registered Office or email the Company at least 10 (ten) days before the date of the AGM. 

 

5. Corporate Members intending to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM are requested to send a scanned 

copy (in PDF/JPG format) of the certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution, together with 

the specimen signature(s) of their duly authorized representative(s), authorizing them to attend the 

AGM and vote on their behalf through remote e-voting or e-voting during the meeting. The said 

resolution should be sent to the Company at sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com, with a copy marked to the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at admin@skylinerta.com and to the Scrutinizer at 

sajnanihemant09@gmail.com.  

 

6. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Special Business 

under Item Nos. 3 and 4 is annexed hereto. 

 

7. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 

Wednesday, September 24, 2025 to Tuesday, September 30, 2025 (both days inclusive), for the 

mailto:sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com
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purpose of the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held through Video 

Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) on Monday, September 30, 2025. 

 

8. The Company has fixed Tuesday, September 23, 2025 as the cut-off date for the purpose of 

determining the eligibility of Members to cast their votes electronically (remote e-voting as well as 

voting during the AGM through e-voting). 

 

9. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Annual Report for the Financial Year 

2024-25, comprising the Financial Statements (including the Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report along 

with other documents required to be attached thereto) together with the Notice of the 39th Annual 

General Meeting, is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail 

addresses are registered with the Company or with their respective Depository Participant(s). 

 

10. The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 is available on 

the website of the Company at https://snsind.in/annual-reports/ , on the website of Metropolitan Stock 

Exchange of India Limited at www.msei.in, and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

The physical copies of the aforesaid documents shall also be available for inspection by the Members 

at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on all working days up to the date of 

the AGM. 

 

11. Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered / updated their e-mail 

addresses with the Company are requested to register their e-mail address with the Company’s 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA), M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, by 

sending an e-mail to admin@skylinerta.com. The request should be accompanied by a duly signed 

letter mentioning the Member’s Name, Folio Number, Address and e-mail ID, along with a self-

attested copy of the PAN card. 

 

12. Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to register/update their e-mail addresses 

with their respective Depository Participant(s) to enable the Company to send communications, 

including the Annual Report and Notice of the AGM, in electronic mode. 

 

13. SEBI, vide its Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024, has 

mandated that all holders of physical securities of listed companies must furnish their PAN, 

nomination, contact details, bank account details and specimen signature(s) to the 

Company/Registrar. Accordingly, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to furnish 

the aforesaid details in the prescribed forms available on the Company’s website at www.snsind.in and 

submit the same to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Skyline Financial 

Services Private Limited, at their e-mail ID at admin@skylinerta.com  or at their office address. 

 

14. The Equity Shares of the Company are compulsorily tradable in dematerialized form only. The Equity 

Shares of the Company have been assigned ISIN INE777R01019. 

 

As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form. It is also mandated 

that transmission or transposition of securities held in physical form shall be effected only in demat 

mode. In view of the foregoing and to eliminate the risks associated with physical shareholding, 

Members holding shares in physical form are strongly urged to dematerialize their holdings at the 

earliest. The detailed procedure for dematerialization of shares is available on the Company’s website 

at www.snsind.in 

 

15.  Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and other statutory records, as required to be made 

available under the Companies Act, 2013, shall be available for inspection by the Members in 

electronic mode. Members who wish to inspect the said documents may send their request to the 

Company at sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com Such documents will also be available for inspection by the 

Members during the AGM, upon log-in to the NSDL e-Voting system at www.evoting.nsdl.com 

https://snsind.in/annual-reports/
http://www.msei.in/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:info@skylinerta.com
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16. Members desirous of obtaining any information or clarification concerning the accounts and 

operations of the Company are requested to send their queries to the Company at least seven days 

prior to the date of the Annual General Meeting at sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com so that the required 

information can be made available at the Meeting, subject to the discretion of the Chairman.. 

 

17. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the circulars issued by SEBI, the 

facility for making a nomination is available to Members in respect of the shares held by them. 

Members holding shares in physical form and who have not yet registered their nomination are 

requested to submit Form SH-13 to the Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) for 

registering their nomination. If a member wishes to cancel or opt out of an earlier nomination and 

record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit Form ISR-3 or Form SH-14, as applicable. The 

aforesaid formats can be downloaded from the Company’s website at www.snsind.in. 

 

Members holding shares in demat mode are requested to submit their nomination details directly to 

their respective Depository Participant(s). 

 

18. Non- Resident Indian Members are requested to inform immediately: 

 

a) Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement. 

 

b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, 

account number and address of the bank with PIN code, if not furnished earlier, to the Company’s 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, in case of 

shares held in physical form, and to their respective Depository Participant(s), in case of shares held in 

demat form. 

 

19. INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING AT THE AGM: 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, applicable Secretarial 

Standards, Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and MCA & SEBI Circulars, the Company 

is pleased to provide remote e-voting facility to its Members in respect of the business to be 

transacted at the AGM and facility of casting vote through e-voting system during the AGM to 

the Members participating in the AGM. Necessary arrangements have been made by the Company 

with NSDL for providing facility of voting through remote e-voting, participation in the AGM through 

VC/OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM. 

 

Members may cast their votes remotely, using an electronic voting system on the date mentioned 

herein below (“remote e-voting”). Further, the facility for voting through electronic voting system will 

also be made available at the Meeting and Members attending the Meeting who have not cast their 

vote(s) by remote e-voting will be able to vote at the Meeting. 

 

The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following voting period: 

 

• Commencement of remote e-voting: From 9:00 A.M. (IST) on Saturday, September 27, 2025 

• End of remote e-voting: Up to 5:00 P.M. (IST) on Monday, September 29, 2025 

 

The remote e-voting will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date and time and the e-voting module 

shall be disabled by NSDL upon expiry of the aforesaid period. 

 

The cut-off date for the purpose of remote e-voting and e-voting at the Annual General Meeting 

is Tuesday, September 23, 2025. 

 

Instructions relating to the process and manner for voting electronically are mentioned below: 
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http://www.snsind.in/


SNS Properties and Leasing Limited                                                                  39th Annual Report 2024-25 

 
60 

 

 

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

Details on Step 1: 

 

A. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode: 

 

In terms of SEBI Circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

account maintained with Depositories and DPs. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 

number and e-mail ID in their demat accounts to access e-voting facility. 

 

Type of Shareholders 

 

Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with NSDL 

1. If you are an existing IDeAS user, please visit the e-Services website of 

NSDL at https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or 

Mobile. On the e-Services home page, click on the “Beneficial Owner” 

icon under “Login” available under the IDeAS section. Enter your 

existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you 

will be able to see e-Voting services under Value Added Services. Click 

on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be 

redirected to the e-Voting website of NSDL. Select the Company name 

or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and cast your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or join the virtual meeting & vote during the 

AGM. 

 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, registration is available 

at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS 

Portal” or directly visit 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp. 

 

3. You can also visit the NSDL e-Voting website directly at 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or Mobile. 

On the home page of e-Voting system, click on the “Login” icon under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open where you 

must enter your User ID (i.e. your 16-digit demat account number with 

NSDL), Password/OTP, and the Verification Code displayed. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to the NSDL website 

where you can view the e-Voting page. Select the Company name or 

service provider i.e. NSDL and cast your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or join the virtual meeting & vote during the AGM. 

 

4. Shareholders can also download the NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” by scanning the QR code given below for a seamless voting 

experience. 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi/Easiest can login through their 

User ID and Password. The option to reach the e-Voting page will be 

made available without any further authentication. The login URL is 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com → 

New System Myeasi.  

 

2. After successful login to Easi/Easiest, the user will be able to see the e-

Voting Menu. This menu will have links to the e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, registration is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistraton. 

 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access the e-Voting page by entering 

their demat account number and PAN through a link on the home 

page of www.cdslindia.com. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending an OTP on the registered Mobile number and E-mail ID as 

recorded in the demat account. After successful authentication, the user 

will be redirected to the respective e-Voting Service Provider (ESP) i.e. 

NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

 

 

Individual 

Shareholders (holding 

securities in Demat 

mode) login through 

their Depository 

Participants 

1. Shareholders can also login using the login credentials of their demat 

account through their Depository Participant registered with 

NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

 

2. Upon logging in, shareholders will be able to see the e-Voting option. 

Click on e-Voting, and after successful authentication, you will be 

redirected to the NSDL/CDSL depository website wherein the e-Voting 

feature will be available. 

 

3. Click on SNS Properties and Leasing Limited (or e-Voting Service 

Provider name i.e. NSDL) and you will be redirected to the NSDL e-

Voting website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

or for joining the virtual meeting & voting during the Meeting. 

 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/Password are advised to use the 

“Forgot User ID” and “Forgot Password” options available at the respective websites. 

 

Login type  Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

Helpdesk by sending a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in or by calling at 

022-4886 7000 / 022-2499 7000. 

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
https://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistraton
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holding securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

Helpdesk by sending a request to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

or by calling at 022-23058738 / 022-23058542 / 022-23058543. 

 

 

B. Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 

mode. 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open a web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or a mobile. 

 

2. Once the home page of the e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under the ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

 

• Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL e-Services (IDEAS), you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. 

• Once you log-in to NSDL e-Services using your credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 

proceed directly to Step 2 i.e. cast your vote electronically. 

 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

Your User ID is: 

(a) For Members holding shares in demat 

account with NSDL 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID.  

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID 

is 12****** then your User ID is IN300***12******. 

(b) For Members holding shares in demat 

account with CDSL 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

(c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered 

with the Company.  

 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 

101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 

 

(a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and 

cast your vote. 

 

(b) If you are using the NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the initial 

password which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your initial password, you need to enter 

it and the system will prompt you to change your password. 

 

(c) How to retrieve your initial password: 

 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your initial 

password is communicated to you on your registered email ID. Check the email sent to you by 

NSDL. It contains a .pdf file attachment. Open the file; the password to open the file is: 

• Your 8-digit Client ID for NSDL account, OR 

• Last 8 digits of Beneficiary ID for CDSL account, OR 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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• Folio number for shares held in physical form. 

The .pdf file contains your User ID and initial password. 

 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow the instructions mentioned elsewhere in 

this Notice. 

 

6. If you are unable to retrieve/ have not received the “initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 

 

(a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (if you are holding shares in demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

(b) Click on “Physical User Reset Password?” (if you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

(c) If you are still unable to get your password by the above two options, you can send a request to 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, PAN, name, and registered 

address. 

 

(d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting their votes on the 

NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

7. After entering your password, read and agree to the “Terms and Conditions” by selecting the 

check box. 

 

8. Now, click on the “Login” button. 

 

9. The home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

 

Process for those shareholders whose email IDs are not registered with the Depositories for 

procuring User ID and Password and registration of email IDs for e-Voting for the resolutions set 

out in this Notice: 

 

a) For Members holding shares in Physical Mode: 

 

Please provide your Folio No., Name of the Shareholder, scanned copy of the Share Certificate (front and 

back), self-attested scanned copy of PAN Card, and self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card by email 

to sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com. 

 

b) For Members holding shares in Demat Mode: 

 

Please provide your DP ID-Client ID (16 digit DP ID + Client ID or 16 digit Beneficiary ID), Name, 

Client Master or copy of Consolidated Account Statement, self-attested scanned copy of PAN Card, and 

self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card by email to sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com. 

If you are an Individual Shareholder holding shares in Demat Mode, you are requested to refer to the 

login method explained at Step 1(A) - Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 

c) Alternatively, Members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring User ID and Password 

for e-Voting by providing the above-mentioned documents. 

 

d) In terms of SEBI Circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat Mode are allowed to vote through their 

Demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Members are required to 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com
mailto:sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


SNS Properties and Leasing Limited                                                                  39th Annual Report 2024-25 

 
64 

 

update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their Demat account in order to access the e-Voting 

facility. 

 

Details on Step 2 is given below: 

 

How to cast your vote electronically and join the Annual General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 

system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies EVEN (E-Voting Event 

Number) in which you are holding shares and whose e-voting cycle and General Meeting is in active 

status. 

 

2. Select the EVEN of SNS Properties and Leasing Limited to cast your vote during the remote e-

voting period or during the Annual General Meeting. 

 

3. The e-voting page will open and you will be ready for casting your vote. 

 

4. Cast your vote by selecting the appropriate option, i.e. Assent or Dissent. Verify/modify the number 

of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 

prompted. 

 

5. Upon confirmation, a message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

 

6. You can also take a printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the “Print” option available on 

the confirmation page. 

 

7. Once you confirm your vote on any resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote 

subsequently. 

 

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS 

 

1. Institutional Shareholders/Corporate Members (i.e., other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are 

required to send a scanned copy (in PDF/JPG format) of the relevant Board Resolution/Authority 

Letter, together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are 

authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail at sajnanihemant09@gmail.com with a copy 

marked to the Company at sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com and to NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and to take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 

unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 

the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available at 

www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset your password. 

 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer to the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 

and the e-voting user manual for Shareholders available in the “Downloads” section of 

www.evoting.nsdl.com, or call NSDL at 022-4886-7000, or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 

4. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is the same as mentioned above for remote e-

voting. 

 

5. Only those Members/Shareholders, who are present at the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 

who have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 

barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through the e-Voting system during the AGM. 

 

6. Members who have already voted through remote e-voting shall be entitled to attend the AGM. 

However, such Members will not be eligible to vote again at the AGM. 

mailto:sajnanihemant09@gmail.com
mailto:sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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7. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-

voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person as mentioned for remote e-voting. 

 

20. INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM: 

 

1. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time of commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 

facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 Members 

on a first-come-first-served basis. This will not include Large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 

2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, 

the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, etc. who will be allowed to attend the AGM without 

restriction on account of first-come-first-served basis. 

 

2. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 

e-Voting system. Members may access the facility by following the process mentioned in Step 1: 

Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, Members should click on the “VC/OAVM 

link” placed under the “Join General Meeting” menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 

Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of the Company is displayed. 

 

3. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for a better experience. Further, 

Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their 

respective networks. It is therefore recommended to use a stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Members who would like to express their views/ask questions at the AGM with regard to any matter 

to be placed at the AGM, need to register themselves as a speaker and may send their request from 

their registered e-mail ID mentioning their name, DP ID & Client ID/Folio Number and Mobile 

Number, so as to reach the Company’s email address sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com at least 48 hours in 

advance before the start of the AGM. The same will be suitably replied to by the Company. 

 

6. Only those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker shall be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the AGM, depending upon the availability of time. 

 

7. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers at the AGM, as may be deemed 

necessary to ensure the smooth conduct of the proceedings. 

 

21. OTHER INSTRUCTIONS: 

 

1. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the Meeting, may also attend the 

Meeting, but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. Once a vote on a resolution is cast by the 

Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast vote again. 

 

2. The voting rights of the shareholders (for voting through remote e-voting or e-voting at the AGM) 

shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 

Tuesday, September 23, 2025 (the “Cut-off Date”). 

 

3. A person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial 

Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the 
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facility of remote e-voting as well as voting in the AGM. Any person who is not a member as on the 

cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes only. 

 

4. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of 

the Company and becomes a member after Friday, September 05, 2025 (BENPOS date considered 

for dispatch of the notice) and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, September 23, 

2025, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in / to the 

Company at sns.prop.ltd@gmail.com / to the Company’s RTA at admin@skylinerta.com. 

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your 

existing user ID and password for casting your vote. In case you forget your password, you can reset 

it by using the “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 022-4886-7000. 

 

5. In case of Individual Shareholders holding shares in demat mode who acquire shares of the Company 

after Friday, September 05, 2025 (BENPOS date) and are holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 

Tuesday, September 23, 2025, may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under “Step 

1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system.” 

 

6. Mr. Hemant Kumar Sajnani (Fellow Membership No. 7348 and Certificate of Practice No.-14214), 

Designated Partner of M/s. HKS & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries, has been appointed as the 

Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process (both remote e-voting and e-voting at the AGM) in a 

fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer has given their consent to act in this capacity. 

 

7. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be 

held, allow voting, by use of the e-voting system for all those members who are present at the AGM 

through VC/OAVM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility. 

 

8. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, scrutinize the votes cast at the 

Meeting and through remote e-voting, prepare a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report and submit the 

same to the Chairman or any other person authorized by him, within 2 working days of the 

conclusion of the Meeting. The results declared along with the consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report will 

be placed on the website of the Company at www.snsind.in and on the website of NSDL at 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. The results will simultaneously be communicated to Metropolitan Stock 

Exchange of India. 

 

9. As required under SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard–2 on General Meetings, the 

relevant details in respect of the Director seeking re-appointment under Item No. 2 of this Notice are 

provided in the Annexure. 

 

BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT 

 

Name of Director Shri Sarthak Agarwal 

(DIN: 09785554) 

Category/ Designation of Director Non-Executive Director 

Date of Birth (Age in Years) 25/01/2003 (22 years) 

Date of first appointment on the Board 13/10/2023 

Qualification B. Tech 

Brief Resume Shri Sarthak Agarwal, aged 22 years, is a B. Tech from BITS 

Pilani, Hyderabad.  

 

He serving on the board of two companies namely, Securocrop 

Business Re-Engineering Private Limited and Devbhoomi 

Commercial Private Limited. He was appointed to the 

Company’s board as Non-Executive Director w.e.f. 13/10/2023 

Experience and Expertise in specific Approximately 3 years in finance and accounts  
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functional area 

Terms & Conditions of 

appointment/re-appointment including 

remuneration 

As per the resolution of appointment passed by the Board of 

Directors and the members at the General Meeting of the 

Company and Company’s Policy on Nomination, Remuneration 

and Board Diversity 

Last Remuneration drawn Not Applicable 

Shareholding in the Company 

(including as Beneficial owner) 

None 

Relationship with other Directors and 

KMP of the Company 

Not related to any Directors or KMP as per Companies Act, 

2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. 

No. of Board Meetings attended 

during the year  

6 

Directorships held in other 

companies 

1. Devbhoomi Commercial Private Limited 

2. Securocrop Business Re-Engineering Private Limited 

Member/Chairman of 

Committees of other Companies 

of which he is a director 

Not Applicable 

Listed entities from which the 

Director has resigned in the past 

three years 

Not Applicable 

 

 

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

 

Item No. 3 & 4: 

 

The Members of the Company vide special resolution passed at the 38th Annual General Meeting held on 

August 13, 2024, had granted an enabling approval to authorize the Board to make investment, provide, 

loan(s), give guarantees, or provide security in connection with loans, in terms of the provisions of 

Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, up to an amount of ₹100 crore, through a single 

resolution. 

 

Upon further review, it has been observed that although the such resolution covered both Sections 185 

and 186, the scope, intent, and regulatory requirements under each of these sections are distinct and 

independent. Section 185 governs loans, guarantees, or securities provided to the person or entities in 

which directors are interested whereas Section 186 pertains to loans, guarantees, securities, and 

investments made by the company to any persons or entities who may or may not be related parties. 

 

To ensure greater transparency, legal clarity and compliance, the Board now proposes to pass separate 

resolutions to have the enabling approval under each section i.e. Section 185 and 186, for an amount of 

Rs. 100.00 Crore under each section in supersession of the earlier resolution passed on August 13, 2024. 

The Members may note that the Board of Directors would carefully evaluate the proposal of such loan(s) 

and/or guarantee(s) and/or security (ies) and shall ensure that such loan shall only be utilized by the 

Borrower for the purpose of its principal business activities. 

  

It is pertinent to note that there is no change in the nature or the limit as previously approved by the 

Members. The separation is being done solely to enhance transparency and better governance. 

 

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolutions as set out at Item No. 3 and 4 of the Notice 

for approval by the members. 

 

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are in any 

way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolutions except to the extent of their 
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Shareholding in the Company and the companies in connection therewith any such Loans, Investments 

may be made or guarantee or security may be provided in which they or their relatives are interested as 

directors or shareholders. 

 

 

Date: August 19, 2025                                                                                       By Order of the Board         

 

 

 Sd/- 

Registered Office: Unit 204 Plaza                                                                            Sujata Kumari 

P-3 Central Square 20 Manohar Lal                                                                  Company Secretary 

Khurana Marg Bara Hindu Rao,                                                                                ACS: 75147 

Sadar Bazar, Delhi, India- 110006 

 


